
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I.   MINUTES                  

A. October 16, 2008 
B. November 7, 2008 
 

II. MISCELLANEOUS 
A. Audit Report – Brady Martz (Information)  
B. PERSLink Quarterly Report – Bryan (Information) 
C. Audit Committee Minutes – Sparb (Information)  
D. Executive Budget Update – Sparb (Information)  
E. NDPERS 2009 Meeting Schedule – (Information)  
F. SIB Agenda 

 
III. RETIREMENT 

A. Annual Investment Update – Steve Cochrane (Information)  
B. Segal Compliance Review of PERS Hybrid Plan and Highway Patrol      

                             Retirement Plan – Deb (Board Action) 
C. Retirement/Legislation Update - Sparb (Board Action)  
D. Proposed Legislation LC90118 – Sparb (Information)  
E. Law Enforcement Plan Transfer Policy – Sparb ( Board Action) 
F. Retiree Health – Sparb (Confidential) (Board Action)  

 
IV. GROUP INSURANCE 

A. 2009 Group PDP Contract – Kathy (Board Action) 
B. Part D Rates – Kathy (Board Action)   
C. Surplus/Affordability Update – Bryan (Information) 
 

V. DEFERRED COMPENSATION 
A. 405(a) and 457 Companion Plan 3rd Quarter Reports – Bryan (Information) 
B. AUL Contract – Sparb & Kathy (Board Action) 
C. Hardship Withdrawal – Kathy (Board Action)  

 
 
 
Any individual requiring an auxiliary aid or service must contact the NDPERS ADA 
Coordinator at 328-3900, at least 5 business days before the scheduled meeting. 

 
Bismarck Location: 

ND Association of Counties 
1661 Capitol Way 

Fargo Location: 
BCBS, 4510 13th Ave SW 

Time: 8:30 AMDecember 16, 2008



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
DATE:  November 21, 2008 
 
TO:   NDPERS Board 
 
FROM:  Jamie 
 
SUBJECT:  2008 Audit Report Presentation 
 
 
Included is the 2008 audit report for the PERS agency.  John Mongeon and Patrick 
Brown from Brady Martz & Associates will be at the Board meeting to review the report 
with you and answer any questions you may have.  This report was reviewed by the 
Audit Committee at its November meeting. 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Bryan and Sharon      
 
DATE:   December 8, 2008 
 
SUBJECT:  PERSLink Project Quarterly Report 
 
 
Quarterly Report 
 
Attached is the third quarter 2008 PERSLink status report.  NDPERS is required to file this report 
with ITD throughout the duration of our system replacement project.  This is the third progress report 
in the execution stage.  Note that the planning phase went well and the project is on time and on 
budget.   
 
Bryan or Sharon will be available at the Board meeting if you have any questions on the report. 
 
 
 



Project Status Report 
 

Project Name PERSLink Project Phase EXECUTION 

For period: July 1, 2008 – September 30, 2008 
Submitted by: Sharon Schiermeister, NDPERS Project Manager 

Green Strong probability the project will be delivered on time, within budget, and with acceptable quality. 

Yellow Good probability the project will be delivered on time, within budget, and with acceptable quality. Schedule, budget, resource, or scope 
changes may be needed. 

Red Probable that the project will NOT be delivered with acceptable quality without changes to schedule, budget, resources, and/or scope. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Status Item Current Status Prior Status Summary 

Overall Project 
Status Green Green 

Overall, the project is on time, on budget and within scope.  
The vendor continues to produce deliverables that conform to 
the acceptance criteria included in the Request for Proposal 
and that adhere to the ITD Enterprise Project Management 
criteria. The project team exhibits a dedicated, cooperative, 
and professional approach to the project – focused on 
producing and accepting deliverables while meeting the 
project timetables.   

Scope Green Green 

No new variance in scope.  A process to track enhancements 
and new or purged requirements using a Scope 
Management Register in Sharepoint was developed. 
Guidelines were also developed for when the NDPERS 
Project Manager can approve a Change Order and when 
Steering Committee approval is required..  

Schedule Green Green 

There is a schedule variance of 2 months on the completion 
of UCS documentation creation and review tasks for Pilot 
2.1. Despite applying an action plan to correct these 
variances, the cumulative variances in the development of 
UCS documents has caused a variance on the Baseline 
Finish Date for Pilot 2.1 UAT beyond the schedule 
contingency buffer. This variance is not expected to 
propagate to the other Pilots and to the final implementation 
because of additional process improvement actions being 
taken. The scheduled implementation date of October 1, 
2010 will be maintained. 

Cost Green Green 
Actual costs are 5.06% less than expected costs primarily 
due to actual NDPERS staff hours being less than projected. 
 
 

Project Risk Green Green 

The risk management log developed during the Planning 
Phase is maintained in SharePoint and is being reviewed 
periodically by the project management team. No new High 
Priority risks and no changes to risks have been identified 
during this period.  

Accomplishments: 
During this reporting period of the Execution phase the PERSLink Project Team completed User Acceptance testing, system 
documentation, user training and deployment planning and execution culminating with the implementation of PERSLink 
Release 1.0 into production. Production cut-over was October 1, 2008. 
 In parallel, the project team also completed all JAD sessions planned for Pilot 2.1, and completed, reviewed and approved all 
the UCS documentation packages for the Pilot.  They also completed technical design, construction and unit testing for 11 of 14 
UCS’s, completed system test for 6 of 14 UCS and started User Acceptance Testing. The Project team also continued to work 
on the data conversion and interfaces with PeopleSoft and vendors.  
The backfile conversion task is in progress. A statement of work and project schedule was developed and started execution. A 
sample of microfiche was converted by the document conversion vendor, FNTI, as a proof of concept and is currently under QA 
review by NDPERS. The NDPERS team also completed the boxing of all the fiche to be converted and the resulting 36 boxes 
will be shipped to FNTI upon successful completion of the QA review for the Proof of Concept. 



The deliverables that were developed, reviewed and approved are listed in the Deliverable Acceptance Log Summary. 
 
The following team building events occurred: 

1. The PERSLink Team held several meetings to review the project plan and address challenges impacting the schedule. 
Specific action plans were developed and put into execution. Lessons learned and action plans are available on the 
SharePoint PERSLink Project Portal.  

2. The PERSLink project team held a series of meetings to review the team process and the UCS development process. 
Lessons learned and action plans are available on the SharePoint PERSLink Project Portal.  

3. Sagitec provided a series of Training Sessions to NDPERS core project team and certain subject matter experts who will 
be involved with UAT for Pilot 2.1 and conducted a training analysis at the completion of the training that was shared with 
the team. 

4. Sagitec also provided a demonstration of Pilot 2.1 to the NDPERS core project team.  
 
The following project communications events occurred: 

1. The July 2008 PERSLink Newsletter was published 
2. NDPERS Project Manager  made periodic updates to the NDPERS Management Team, staff and NDPERS Board 
Expected Accomplishments: 
During the next reporting period the project team plans to accomplish the following: 
1. Complete the following tasks and deliverables: 

a. Technical Design, Construction and Unit Testing, Conversion, System Testing  for Pilot 2.1 
b. Execution of Pilot 2.1  
c. User Acceptance Testing for Pilot 2.1 
d. Planning for Pilots 2.2 and 2.3 
e. Scope Definition for Pilots 2.2 and 2.3 

 
 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT 
Status Item Current Status Prior Status Summary 

Project Risk Green Green No new risks have been added.  
Risk Management Log Summary 

Risk # Description Response Plan Owner 
    
    
    
    
Comments: 
A complete Risk Log is available on PERSLink Project Portal in SharePoint. A total of 17 risks have been identified, 
prioritized and are being monitored by the PERSLink Project Team. 
 
Issues Log Summary 

Issue # Description Required Action Owner 
 

4 

Sagitec lost their data conversion 
manager on 5/20.  They will need to 
hire a new manager and bring them 
up to speed on the project.  While 
this may not impact Pilot 1.1, it may 
have an impact on planning for data 
conversion of Pilot 2.1 which was 
scheduled to begin in April and 
continue through October 2008, 

A new resource to replace the data 
conversion manager is in place 
and data conversion is in 
progress.  Issue is CLOSED.  

Sagitec Project Manager 

Comments:  
An Issue Management process document was developed and approved during the project planning phase. As areas 
of risk eventuate an issue is created in the Issue Register (PERSLink Project Portal in SharePoint) and assigned an 
owner for resolution. The team continues to monitor Issue #3 relating to NDPERS staffing. At this time, this is the only 
outstanding issue. 

 

 



SCOPE MANAGEMENT 
Status Item Current Status Prior Status Summary 

Scope Green Green No change control log entries. 

Change Control Log Summary 
Change # Description Action 

Accept / Reject Action Date 

    
Comments: 
A Change Management Process document was developed and approved by the PERSLink project team during the 
Planning Phase. There are no entries in the Change Management Log on the PERSLink Project Portal in SharePoint. 
New requirements and enhancements are being tracked using a Scope Management Register in SharePoint. Additions 
and removals from scope are recorded and a process to dispose of additions in excess of removals was developed 
and is being executed by the Project Management Team with approval from the Steering Committee as needed. 
Deliverable Acceptance Log Summary 
Deliverable # Deliverable Name Action 

Accept / Reject Action Date 

 Phase 4 Release 1.0 Transition Plan Accept 9/10/08 
 Phase 4 Release 1.0 User Training Accept 9/30/08 
 Phase 4 Release 1.0 Deployment/Rollout Plan Accept 8/26/08 

 Phase 4 Release 1.0 Conversion Certification of 
Completion Accept 8/26/08 

 Phase 4 Release 1.0 Software Certification of 
Completion Accept 8/28/08 

 Phase 4 Release 1.0 Source Code Accept 8/28/08 
 Phase 4 Release 1.0 Acceptance of the System Accept 9/30/08 
 Phase 5 Pilot 2.1 Use Case Scenarios Accept 9/30/08 
 Phase 5 Pilot 2.1 Activity Diagrams Accept 9/30/08 
 Phase 5 Pilot 2.1 Data Definitions Accept 9/30/08 
 Phase 5 Pilot 2.1 Business Rules Accept 9/30/08 

 Phase 5 Pilot 2.1 Correspondence Definitions Accept (with exception of 
UCS-022 addendum) 9/30/08 

 Phase 5 Pilot 2.1 Report Definitions Accept (with exception of 
UCS-022 addendum) 9/30/08  

 Phase 5 Pilot 2.1 Updated RTM Accept 9/30/08 

 Phase 5 Pilot 2.1 Interface Definitions Accept (with exception of 
UCS-022 addendum) 9/30/08 

 Phase 5 Pilot 2.1 Conversion Specifications Accept (with exception of 
UCS-022 addendum) 9/30/08 

 Phase 5 Pilot 2.1 Integration Specifications Accept 9/30/08 
Comments: 
All PERSLink deliverables are maintained on the PERSLink Project Portal in SharePoint. All accepted deliverables are 
maintained in the Acceptance Folder in word format and on the Archive folder in pdf format  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



COST MANAGEMENT 
Status Item Current Status Prior Status Summary 

Budget Green Green 
At the end of the quarter, actual costs were lower 
than expected costs. 

Project Budget Revised Budget 
(if applicable) Expenditures to Date Estimated Cost at 

Completion 

$10,502,214 10,502,214 3,452,435 $9,970,392 

 

 

Original Actual Expected Actual vs Expected Remaining
Budget Costs Costs Variance Budget

Sagitec 7,678,360 3,011,467 3,034,058 (22,591) 4,666,893

LRWL 1,000,000 240,197 270,831 (30,635) 759,803

Hardware/Software 185,000 12,430 12,430 0 172,570

Contingency 730,640 0 0 0 730,640

Total Appropriation 9,594,000 3,264,094 3,317,319 (53,226) 6,329,906

PERS Staffing 908,214 188,341 319,269 (130,928) 719,873
  hours 24,000 4,977 8,437 (3,460) 19,023

Total Budget 10,502,214 3,452,435 3,636,588 (184,153) 7,049,780

 











 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb      
 
DATE:   December 8, 2008   
 
SUBJECT:  Executive Budget Update 
 
 
On December 3rd Governor Hoeven release his proposed budget for 2009-2011.  The 
following are his actions relating to PERS programs: 
 
PERS Program area Governors Action 
Administrative Budget Approved as proposed 
Retiree Health Increase Approved and funded a contribution 

increase of .14% 
Health Insurance Approved our recommended priority #2 

(see attached priority list previously 
approved by the Board – the grey shaded 
column is approved) 

   



Current Rate: $658.08

Existing Existing Existing Existing Alt 3
Plan Plan Plan - EPO Option A Alt 1 Alt 1 - A Alt 2 Alt 2 - A HDHP

BCBS  bid $846.64 $846.64 $846.64 $829.76 $839.00 $837.88 $830.64 $810.56 $803.70 $751.90

Deductions
  Remove 1% Contingency ($8.44) ($8.44) ($8.44) ($8.27) ($8.36) ($8.36) ($8.28) ($8.08) ($8.02) ($7.50)
Sub total $838.20 $838.20 $838.20 $821.49 $830.64 $829.52 $822.36 $802.48 $795.68 $744.40

27.37% 27.37% 27.37% 24.83% 26.22% 26.05% 24.96% 21.94% 20.91% 13.12%
Biennium 
Cost 
Increase: FTE's
State 11,500 $49,713,120 $49,713,120 $49,713,120 $45,101,160 $47,626,560 $47,317,440 $45,341,280 $39,854,400 $37,977,600 $23,824,320
General Fund 60% $29,827,872 $29,827,872 $29,827,872 $27,060,696 $28,575,936 $28,390,464 $27,204,768 $23,912,640 $22,786,560 $14,294,592
Other Funds 40% $19,885,248 $19,885,248 $19,885,248 $18,040,464 $19,050,624 $18,926,976 $18,136,512 $15,941,760 $15,191,040 $9,529,728

  Wellness Package With EPO + Ben W/O EPO +/-Ben W/O EPO -Ben W/O EPO +/-Ben W/O EPO +/-Ben W/O EPO +/-Ben W/O EPO +/-Ben W/O EPO +/-Ben
      EPO $0.00 ($16.71) Inc. above ($16.56) ($16.53) ($16.39) ($15.99) ($15.85)
      Benefit Standard $0.00 ($3.40) ($3.40) ($3.40) ($3.40) ($3.40) ($3.40) ($3.40)
      Wellness Benefits $7.88 $7.88 $0.00 $7.88 $7.88 $7.88 $7.88 $7.88
          Subtotal $7.88 ($12.23) ($3.40) ($12.08) ($12.05) ($11.91) ($11.51) ($11.37)

Sub Total $846.08 $825.97 $838.20 $818.09 $818.56 $817.47 $810.45 $790.97 $784.31 $744.40
Increase $'s $188.00 $167.89 $180.12 $160.01 $160.48 $159.39 $152.37 $132.89 $126.23 $86.32
Increase % 28.57% 25.51% 27.37% 24.31% 24.39% 24.22% 23.15% 20.19% 19.18% 13.12%

PERS Benefits Committee Priority: 1 3 2 7 4 5 6 8 9 10
NDPERS Priority: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Biennium 
Cost 
Increase: FTE's
State 11,500 $51,888,000 $46,337,640 $49,713,120 $44,162,760 $44,292,480 $43,991,640 $42,054,120 $36,677,640 $34,839,480 $23,824,320
General Fund 60% $31,132,800 $27,802,584 $29,827,872 $26,497,656 $26,575,488 $26,394,984 $25,232,472 $22,006,584 $20,903,688 $14,294,592
Other Funds 40% $20,755,200 $18,535,056 $19,885,248 $17,665,104 $17,716,992 $17,596,656 $16,821,648 $14,671,056 $13,935,792 $9,529,728

* - No longer funding Health Dialog at $4.18 because Disease Management is included in BCBS Administration.

*
*

* Last two are included in BCBS Adm fee

Option A Increase individual coinsurance by $250 and family by $500 
Alternative 1 Increase individual deductibles by $50 on EPO and $100 on 

PPO and Basic plans. Increase family deductible by $150 on 
EPO and $300 on PPO and Basic Plans 

Alternative 1.A Both Alternative 1 and Option A 
Alternative 2 Increase individual deductibles by $300 on EPO and $350 on 

PPO and Basic plans. Increase family deductible by $900 on 
EPO and $1050 on PPO and Basic Plans 

Alternative 2.a Both Alternative 2 and Option A 
Alternative 3  HDHP with $1250 individual deductible and $2,500 family 

deductible 
 

NDPERS Health Plan 2009-2011 Wellness Additions: 
 
$200 Screening Benefit     $5.84 
HPV Vaccine       $0.36 
Zoster Vaccine      $0.30 
Tetanus Vaccine      $0.20 
Influenza Vaccine      $0.10 
Chiropractic Copay Standardization    $0.24 
LRD Obesity Visit      $0.72 
7 Well Child Care Visits     $0.12 
Subtotal       $7.88 
 
Circumcisions       $0.18 
My Health Center      $0.72 
 
Total        $8.78 

NDPERS Health Plan 2009-2011 Benefit Reductions: 
 
Well Child Care Copays     $1.02 
PT/OT/ST Copays      $1.06 
Maintenance Drug Copays     $1.32 
 
Total        $3.40 
 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS@state.nd.us ●  discovernd.com/NDPERS 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb      
 
DATE:   December 3, 2008   
 
 
PROPOSED 2009 NDPERS  
BOARD MEETING DATES 
 
All meetings are scheduled to be held at the North Dakota Association of Counties conference room located at 
1661 Capitol Way, Bismarck, unless otherwise noted. 
 

• January 22 
• February 19 
• March 19 
• April 16 
• May 21 
• June 18 
• July 16 
• August 20 
• September 17 
• October 22  
• November 19 
• December 17 

 



NDSIB Investment Program
PERS Annual Review

December 16, 2008



U.S. Home Foreclosure Filings – 3.5 Years

Housing Crisis



CPI Y-O-Y – 5 Years

Inflation



Real GDP Growth – 5 Years

Slower Growth



Oil Price Futures – 1 Year

High Oil Prices



Oil Price Futures – 5 Years

High Oil Prices



U.S. Unemployment Rate – 5 Years

Rising Unemployment



ISM Manufacturing – 6 Years

Manufacturing Slowdown



Consumer Confidence – 5 Years

Consumer Confidence Collapse



S&P 500 – 1 Year

Bear Market



S&P 500 – 5 Years

Bear Market



Retail Sector – 1 Year

Consumers Are Hurting



Financial Sector – 1 Year

Banking Crisis



EAFE Index – 1 Year

It’s Not Just the USA



EAFE Index – 5 Years

It’s Not Just the USA



S&P 500 Sector Weights

Consumer 
Staples
10.8%

Energy
16.2%

Financials
14.3%

Health Care
11.9%

Information 
Tech
16.4% Tele-

communication
3.3%

Industrials
11.1%

Consumer 
Discretionary

8.1%

Materials
3.8%

Utilities
4.0%

Consumer 
Staples

9.3%

Energy
10.8%

Financials
20.8%

Health Care
11.7%

Information 
Tech
15.4% Tele-

communication
3.8%

Industrials
11.4%

Consumer 
Discretionary

10.2%

Materials
3.1%

Utilities
3.5%

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2007



Domestic Large 
Cap Equity

30%

Domestic Small 
Cap Equity

10%

International Equity
10%

Alternatives
5%
Emerging Markets 

Equity
5%

Real Estate
5%

High Yield Fixed 
Income

5%

Domestic Fixed 
Income

24%

Cash Equivalents
1%

International Fixed 
Income

5%

PERS Asset Allocation – FY08



Year Ending 6/30/08 5 Years Ending 6/30/08
(10.0)

(5.0)

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

Group: CAI Public Fund Sponsor Database
for Periods Ended June 30, 2008

Returns

10th Percentile (1.90) 11.42
25th Percentile (3.24) 10.32

Median (4.84) 9.12
75th Percentile (5.89) 8.16
90th Percentile (7.44) 6.81

Member Count 91 84

PERS Total Fund-Gross A (4.88) 11.55

A (52)

A (7)



Year Ending 6/30/08 5 Years Ending 6/30/08
(10.0)

(5.0)

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

Group: CAI Public Fund Sponsor Database
for Periods Ended June 30, 2008

Returns

10th Percentile (1.90) 11.42
25th Percentile (3.24) 10.32

Median (4.84) 9.12
75th Percentile (5.89) 8.16
90th Percentile (7.44) 6.81

Member Count 91 84

TFFR Total Fund-Gross A (6.80) 12.28
PERS Total Fund-Gross B (4.88) 11.55

A (86)

A (4)

B (52)

B (7)



TFFR vs PERS - Asset Allocation

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

30.0%

35.0%

Large Cap Domestic
Equity

International Equity Domestic Fixed
Income

High Yield Real Estate

TFFR PERS



TFFR vs PERS - Asset Class Results

-30.0%

-20.0%

-10.0%

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

Large Cap Domestic
Equity

International Equity Domestic Fixed
Income

High Yield Real Estate

TFFR Allocation
PERS Allocation
Return



TFFR vs PERS Asset Allocation Impact on Total Fund

-15.0%

-10.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

Large Cap
Domestic Equity

International
Equity

Domestic Fixed
Income

High Yield Real Estate Total Return
Difference

Asset Allocation Difference

Impact on Total Fund



Allocations

TFFR PERS Difference Returns Impact

Large Cap 
Domestic Eq

28.0% 30.0% (2.0)% (15.66)% 0.31%

Int’l Eq 18.0% 10.0% 8.0 % (17.92)% (1.43)%

Domestic Fixed 12.0% 24.0% (12.0)% 9.78% (1.17)%

High Yield 7.0% 5.0% 2.0 % (3.29)% (0.07)%

Real Estate 9.0% 5.0% 4.0 % 7.31% 0.29 %

Total (1.92)%



PERS

December 16, 2008

The GOOD, 
The BAD And 
The UGLY



6/30/08
Year Ending

6/30/08
3 Years Ending

6/30/08
5 Years Ending

6/30/08
10 Years Ending

(10.0)

(5.0)

0.0

5.0

10.0

15.0

Group: CAI Public Fund Sponsor Database
for Periods Ended June 30, 2008

Returns

10th Percentile (1.90) 8.88 11.42 7.15
25th Percentile (3.24) 8.14 10.32 6.73

Median (4.84) 6.90 9.12 6.19
75th Percentile (5.89) 5.99 8.16 5.44
90th Percentile (7.44) 5.03 6.81 5.17

Member Count 91 86 84 71

ND Pen - Total Fund A (5.82) 8.70 11.60 6.91

A (73)

A (13)

A (7)

A (19)



2 Quarters Ending 12/31/07
(1.0)

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

Group: CAI Public Fund Sponsor Database
for Periods Ended December 31, 2007

Returns

10th Percentile 3.24
25th Percentile 2.32

Median 1.57
75th Percentile 0.79
90th Percentile (0.19)

Member Count 119

ND Pen - Total Fund A 0.04

A (86)



Year Ending 12/31/07
6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

10.0

11.0

Group: CAI Public Fund Sponsor Database
for Periods Ended December 31, 2007

Returns

10th Percentile 10.58
25th Percentile 9.52

Median 8.30
75th Percentile 7.22
90th Percentile 6.46

Member Count 115

ND Pen - Total Fund A 9.01
TFFR Total Fund-Gross B 8.79
PERS Total Fund-Gross C 9.20

A (35)
B (41)

C (32)



2 Quarters Ending 6/30/08
(8.0)
(7.5)
(7.0)
(6.5)
(6.0)
(5.5)
(5.0)
(4.5)
(4.0)
(3.5)

Group: CAI Public Fund Sponsor Database
for Periods Ended June 30, 2008

Returns

10th Percentile (3.96)
25th Percentile (5.30)

Median (6.13)
75th Percentile (6.96)
90th Percentile (7.62)

Member Count 91

ND Pen - Total Fund A (5.86)

A (42)



2007 2008
(8.0)

(6.0)

(4.0)

(2.0)

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

for Year Ended June 30, 2008
Cumulative Returns

R
et

ur
ns

(5.8) - ND Pen - Total Fund

(4.2) - Total Fund Policy-Pension



The GOOD, 
The BAD And 
The UGLY



The GOOD, 
The BAD And 
The UGLY

No Defaults

No Manager “Blow-Ups”

No Margin Calls



The GOOD, 
The BAD And 
The UGLY

Performance vs CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Last Last Last 2 Last 3 Last 5 Last 10 Last 18-3/4
Quarter Year Years Years Years Years Years

(89)(88)

(10)
(19)

(17)(28)

(49)(51) (68)(70)

(63)(68)

(87)(85)

10th Percentile (0.45) 7.77 6.98 4.73 4.31 6.11 7.66
25th Percentile (0.62) 7.11 6.67 4.25 4.10 5.92 7.47

Median (0.82) 5.95 6.11 3.94 3.95 5.80 7.39
75th Percentile (1.13) 3.78 4.94 3.10 3.38 5.49 7.26
90th Percentile (1.75) 1.72 4.11 2.59 3.06 5.25 7.12

Bank of
North Dakota (1.62) 7.77 6.75 3.99 3.63 5.72 7.15

LB Govt/Credit Bd (1.51) 7.24 6.62 3.84 3.58 5.68 7.17

Callan Performance Report – June 30, 2008



The GOOD, 
The BAD And 
The UGLY

(10%)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

Last Quarter

(0.71%)(1.02%)

1.01%

Last Year

17.23%

7.12%

19.96%

Last 2 Years

22.14%

6.62%

15.85%

Last 3 Years

19.32%

4.09%

17.12%

Last 3-3/4 Years

29.32%

4.21%

16.92%

R
et

ur
ns

TIR - Springbank LB Aggregate Index NCREIF Timberland Index

Callan Performance Report – June 30, 2008



The GOOD, 
The BAD And 
The UGLY

Performance vs CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

Last Quarter Last Year

(1)

(71)

(1)

(24)

10th Percentile (0.45) 7.77
25th Percentile (0.62) 7.11

Median (0.82) 5.95
75th Percentile (1.13) 3.78
90th Percentile (1.75) 1.72

JP Morgan
Infrastructure Fund 7.05 15.05

LB Aggregate Index (1.02) 7.12

Callan Performance Report – June 30, 2008



The GOOD, 
The BAD And 
The UGLY

Performance vs CAI Derivative Enhanced Index Style

(30%)

(25%)

(20%)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

Last Last Last 2 Last 3 Last 5 Last 7-3/4
Quarter Year Years Years Years Years

(24)(36)

(5)(13)

(4)(13)
(2)(7)

(1)(9)

(4)(33)

10th Percentile (0.46) (12.80) 2.57 4.33 7.58 0.89
25th Percentile (2.32) (13.82) 1.83 3.88 7.41 0.51

Median (2.85) (17.37) (0.19) 2.54 6.64 (0.05)
75th Percentile (3.67) (22.48) (3.33) 0.42 5.25 (0.63)
90th Percentile (4.47) (25.80) (5.68) (1.10) 4.51 (1.21)

Westridge Capital (2.27) (11.87) 3.44 5.29 8.36 1.14

S&P 500 Index (2.73) (13.12) 2.36 4.41 7.58 0.24

Westridge
 

Capital

Callan Performance Report – June 30, 2008



(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Last
Quarter

Last
Year

Last 2
Years

Last 3
Years

Last 5
Years

Last 9-1/2
Years

R
et

ur
ns

Wells Capital LB Aggregate Index LB Intermediate BBB

The GOOD, 
The BAD And 
The UGLY

Callan Performance Report – June 30, 2008



The GOOD,
 The BAD And 

The UGLY



The GOOD,
 The BAD And 

The UGLY
High Correlation Among 

10 Major Markets

All of the 23 developed nations in the MSCI World Index except for Canada have 
experienced bear-market plunges of 20 percent or more since September as 
credit losses surged and record commodity prices stoked inflation. Brazil 
recently became the 23rd out of 25 developing countries in the MSCI Emerging 
Markets Index to enter a bear market. Only Jordan and Morocco avoided such 
slumps.



The GOOD, 
The BAD And

 The UGLY

Performance vs CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style

(4%)

(2%)

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

Last Last Last 2 Last 3 Last 5 Last 10 Last 22-1/4
Quarter Year Years Years Years Years Years

(87)(71)
(93)

(24)

(91)

(28)

(92)

(44)
(90)

(60)

(25)(68)

(11)
(86)

10th Percentile (0.45) 7.77 6.98 4.73 4.31 6.11 8.23
25th Percentile (0.62) 7.11 6.67 4.25 4.10 5.92 7.69

Median (0.82) 5.95 6.11 3.94 3.95 5.80 7.50
75th Percentile (1.13) 3.78 4.94 3.10 3.38 5.49 7.33
90th Percentile (1.75) 1.72 4.11 2.59 3.06 5.25 7.25

Western Asset (1.42) (0.10) 3.49 1.99 3.11 5.92 8.13

LB Aggregate Index (1.02) 7.12 6.62 4.09 3.85 5.68 7.28

Callan Performance Report – June 30, 2008



The GOOD,
 The BAD

 
And 

The UGLY



The GOOD, 
The BAD And

 The UGLY

Performance vs CAI Core Bond Fixed-Inc Style

(25%)

(20%)

(15%)

(10%)

(5%)

0%

5%

10%

15%

Last Quarter Last Year Last 1-1/4 Years

(100)

(71)

(100)

(24)

(99)

(28)

10th Percentile (0.45) 7.77 6.16
25th Percentile (0.62) 7.11 5.32

Median (0.82) 5.95 4.23
75th Percentile (1.13) 3.78 2.61
90th Percentile (1.75) 1.72 1.01

Hyperion (10.44) (19.73) (16.54)

LB Aggregate Index (1.02) 7.12 5.22

Callan Performance Report – June 30, 2008



NDSIB Investment Program
Update

December 16, 2008



Quarter Ending 9/30/08
(11.0)

(10.0)

(9.0)

(8.0)

(7.0)

(6.0)

Group: CAI Public Fund Sponsor Database
for Periods Ended September 30, 2008

Returns

10th Percentile (6.50)
25th Percentile (7.55)

Median (8.66)
75th Percentile (9.53)
90th Percentile (10.58)

Member Count 108

ND Pen - Total Fund A (8.70)

A (51)



Quarter Ending 9/30/08
(11.0)

(10.0)

(9.0)

(8.0)

(7.0)

(6.0)

Group: CAI Public Fund Sponsor Database
for Periods Ended September 30, 2008

Returns

10th Percentile (6.50)
25th Percentile (7.55)

Median (8.66)
75th Percentile (9.53)
90th Percentile (10.58)

Member Count 108

ND Pen - Total Fund A (8.70)
TFFR Total Fund-Gross B (9.41)

A (51)

B (70)



Quarter Ending 9/30/08
(11.0)

(10.0)

(9.0)

(8.0)

(7.0)

(6.0)

Group: CAI Public Fund Sponsor Database
for Periods Ended September 30, 2008

Returns

10th Percentile (6.50)
25th Percentile (7.55)

Median (8.66)
75th Percentile (9.53)
90th Percentile (10.58)

Member Count 108

ND Pen - Total Fund A (8.70)
TFFR Total Fund-Gross B (9.41)
PERS Total Fund-Gross C (8.24)

A (51)

B (70)

C (40)



9/30/08
Quarter Ending

9/30/08
Year Ending

9/30/08
3 Years Ending

9/30/08
5 Years Ending

(25.0)
(20.0)
(15.0)
(10.0)

(5.0)
0.0
5.0

10.0
15.0

Group: CAI Public Fund Sponsor Database
for Periods Ended September 30, 2008

Returns

10th Percentile (6.50) (11.35) 4.19 8.18
25th Percentile (7.55) (13.01) 3.35 7.60

Median (8.66) (14.76) 2.78 6.67
75th Percentile (9.53) (16.41) 2.01 6.02
90th Percentile (10.58) (17.42) 1.33 4.90

Member Count 108 107 101 99

TFFR Total Fund-Gross A (9.41) (16.65) 3.65 9.04
PERS Total Fund-Gross B (8.24) (14.01) 3.97 8.79

ND Pen - Total Fund C (8.70) (15.19) 3.74 8.68

A (70)

A (79)

A (21)

A (7)

B (40)

B (39)

B (14)
B (8)

C (51)

C (57)

C (19)
C (8)



YTD through October 31:   -20.08%

PERS estimated YTD (12-8-08): -22%



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Deb & Sparb        
 
DATE:   December 8, 2008   
 
SUBJECT:  Compliance Review Performed by Segal Company 
 
Attached, for your review, are the results of the compliance review that was conducted by 
Segal Company at the end of November.  Melanie Walker from the Segal Company will be 
available for questions at the Board meeting via telephone.   
 
The next step is to decide whether or not to submit the NDPERS plans to the IRS for a 
determination ruling.  Melanie has explained to us that if we were to decide to submit the 
plan for a determination, we have the opportunity to submit it under Schedule C or Schedule 
E.  Regardless of whether we submit under Schedule C or E, pursuant to automatic 
rollovers (see item #12 in her letter) it will be necessary for NDPERS to submit to the 
Voluntary Compliance Program (VCP).  This would entail the plan proposing a corrective 
action and being subject to a fine.  Melanie indicates that this would most likely be a small 
fine.    
 
If we elect to submit under Schedule C, there will likely be a large number of submissions 
from other governmental plans, as the IRS has encouraged voluntary submissions from that 
sector.  This would most likely result in an extended time period before NDPERS would  
receive a determination because there would be many similar requests coming in at the 
same time and IRS staff  may not be familiar with governmental plans. The determination 
would also take place based on current regulations, requirements, etc. covered in Melanie’s 
compliance review. Therefore, item #14 would not have to be addressed prior to the 
submission of the plan.  The deadline for submission under this schedule is January 31, 
2009. 
 
If we elect to submit the plan under Schedule E, the deadline for submission moves to 
January 1, 2011.  It is possible we might benefit by submitting after the schedule C group, 
as the IRS would better understand governmental plans.  However, it could also result in 
new requirements, which would not have been covered in our compliance review and which 
we would be required to address before submitting our plans for a determination. 



Compliance Review 
Page 2 
 
Once a plan has received a determination, it is customary to re-submit the plan periodically 
for review, although this is not a required activity. 
 
Melanie also recommended that we submit the plan on behalf of the State of North Dakota, 
indicating that the rest of the employers will follow the state’s plan rather than submitting it 
on behalf of all the employers participating in the plan.  She noted she believed that this 
would be the most cost effective method of applying for the determination. 
 
Staff recommendation: Submit the plans under schedule C and submit the automatic 

rollover item in #12 to the Voluntary Compliance Program. 
 
We have asked Melanie for a bid on what Segal’s services would be for submitting the 
Plans under Schedule C and have included her response as an attachment for your review 
as well. 
 
Board Action Required:   Determine whether to submit the state’s Hybrid and 

Highway Patrol retirement plans for a determination letter 
under schedule C or E .   



 

THE SEGAL COMPANY 
5670 Greenwood Plaza Blvd., Suite 425  Greenwood Village, CO 80111-2499 
T 303.714.9900  F 303.714.9990  www.segalco.com 

DIRECT DIAL NUMBER 
(303) 714-9942 

E-MAIL ADDRESS 
mwalker@segalco.com 
 

 

 Benefits, Compensation and HR Consulting ATLANTA  BOSTON  CALGARY  CHICAGO  CLEVELAND  DENVER  HARTFORD  HOUSTON  LOS ANGELES   
 MINNEAPOLIS  NEW ORLEANS  NEW YORK  PHILADELPHIA  PHOENIX  PRINCETON  RALEIGH  SAN FRANCISCO  TORONTO  WASHINGTON, DC 

  
Multinational Group of Actuaries and Consultants BARCELONA  BRUSSELS  DUBLIN  GENEVA  HAMBURG  JOHANNESBURG  LONDON  MELBOURNE   
MEXICO CITY  OSLO  PARIS  

 

December 1, 2008 

Mr. Sparb Collins 
Executive Director 
State of North Dakota Public Employees' Retirement System 
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 
Bismarck, ND 58502 
 
Re: North Dakota PERS – Compliance review of Highway Patrol Retirement System 

Dear Sparb: 

At your request, we reviewed statutory provisions governing the Highway Patrol Retirement 
System (mainly North Dakota Century Code Title 39, Chapter 03.1), as well as applicable 
sections of the North Dakota Administrative Code, Title 71.  Our review focused on written plan 
requirements for qualified defined benefit plans under Internal Revenue Code section 401(a), as 
applicable for governmental plans, and the IRS cumulative list of required modifications for 
governmental plans, as set forth in IRS Notice 2007-94.  Following is brief description of the 
written plan requirements and our findings with respect to each requirement: 

1. The written plan must include trust provisions (See Code section 401(a) and Treasury 
Regulations section 1.401-1(a)(2)).  This requirement appears to be satisfied by the 
language in North Dakota Century Code (NDCC) §54-52-14.1, which states “Investment 
of the fund is under the supervision of the state investment board in accordance with 
chapter 21-10.  Such moneys must be placed for investment only with a firm … only after 
trust agreement or contract has been executed.”  NDCC §§21-10-02 and -06 describe the 
state investment board’s authority to invest the assets of the Highway Patrol Retirement 
System.  Therefore, the trust language in NDCC §54-52-14.1 applies to the Highway 
Patrol Retirement System (“Highway Patrol Plan”).  In addition, NDCC §39-03.1-06 
describes the retirement board’s authority to govern the Highway Patrol Plan.  

2. Plan contributions must be made to a trust by the employer, employees or both for the 
purpose of distributing benefits from the principal and income of the trust (See Code 
section 401(a)(1)).  NDCC §39-03.1-09, subsection 1 and §39-03.1-10 describe the 
employee and employer contributions that are required to be made to the retirement fund, 



Mr. Sparb Collins 
December 1, 2008 
Page 2 

respectively.  NDCC §39-03.1-05 indicates that retirement benefits are payable from the 
retirement fund with the following language:  “All moneys of the fund, including 
employers’ contributions, contributors’ contributions … must be deposited in the public 
employees retirement fund … [and] are appropriated for the purpose of … to make 
payments to beneficiaries under the program.” 

 In addition, governmental plans that provide for employer pick-up of mandatory 
employee contributions under Code section 414(h)(2), must satisfy the following 
requirements (See Rev. Rul. 2006-43): 

(a) specify that the contributions, although designated as employee contributions are 
being paid by the employer; 

(b) the employing unit must take formal action (memorialized in writing) to provide that 
contributions on behalf of a specific class of employees will be paid by the employing 
unit in lieu of employee contributions; and 

(c) not permit a participating employee to have the right to opt out of the pick-up or 
receive the contributed amounts directly. 

NDCC §39-03.1-09, subsection 2 indicates that the State (as an employer) may elect to 
pick-up employee contributions.  This subsection 2 states “The amount paid must be paid 
by the state in lieu of contributions by the member.  A member may not receive the 
contributed amounts directly once the employer has elected to pay the employee 
contributions.  … If contributions are paid by the state, they must be treated as employer 
contributions in determining tax treatment … .”  Therefore, it appears that the 
requirements set forth in (a) and (c) above are satisfied.  However, unlike the Hybrid 
Plan, the Highway Patrol Plan’s governing documents do not contain language that 
requires employers to make a written election to pick-up employee contributions, as 
described in (b) above.  To the extent written proof of a formal action by the State to 
pick-up employee contributions on behalf of a specific class of employees exists outside 
the applicable statutes and/or administrative code, then the requirement described in (b) 
above would still be satisfied. 

3. A qualified plan must be maintained for the exclusive benefit of employees and their 
beneficiaries, and under the plan’s trust instrument, assets must not be diverted for any 
other purpose (See Code section 401(a)(2)).  Since the Highway Patrol Plan is a fund 
under the public employee retirement system, this requirement appears to be satisfied by 
the language in NDCC §54-52-14.3, which states “All moneys from any source paid into 
any public employee retirement system fund … must be used and invested only for the 
exclusive benefit of the members, retirees, and beneficiaries of that system … .”  

4. Although governmental plans generally are not subject to the vesting rules set forth in 
Code section 411, they must satisfy pre-ERISA vesting rules set forth in Code section 
401(a)(7) in effect on September 1, 1974 (See Code section 411(e)(2)).  Pre-ERISA 
vesting rules require governmental plans to provide for 100% vesting at plan termination.  



Mr. Sparb Collins 
December 1, 2008 
Page 3 

The Highway Patrol Plan governing documents do not mention plan termination, and 
therefore do not provide for 100% vesting at plan termination.   

 The IRS may consider the lack of language requiring 100% vesting at plan termination a 
written plan qualification failure that must be corrected.  However, it may be acceptable 
to the IRS to demonstrate that the written plan does not permit termination, and thus there 
is no need to provide for 100% vesting at such occurrence.  In addition, it is our 
understanding that for current employees, the Highway Patrol Plan provisions are part of 
the employment contract with the employer, and therefore the Plan could not be 
terminated for such employees.  Finally, it is useful to note that the governing documents 
for the Teachers’ Fund for Retirement do not contain the required provision and yet 
received a favorable determination letter several years ago. 

 If it is determined that correction is necessary, the appropriate method of correction is to 
file the Highway Patrol Plan documents under the IRS’ Voluntary Compliance Program 
(VCP) at the same time as a determination letter filing.  VCP requires that the plan adopt 
a corrective amendment and pay a specified penalty. 

5. A qualified plan must prohibit the use of forfeitures to increase the benefits of employees 
(See Code section 401(a)(8)).  The Highway Patrol Plan governing documents do not 
specifically prohibit or permit the use of forfeitures to increase benefits under the Plan.  
The IRS may consider the lack of such language a written plan qualification failure that 
must be corrected.  However, it may be acceptable to the IRS to demonstrate that the 
written plan does not specifically provide for the use of forfeitures to increase benefits 
under the Plan and that operationally the Plan does not use forfeitures to increase 
benefits.  In addition, this position is strengthened by the fact that mandatory employee 
contributions to the Plan are not forfeited.  That is, employees are guaranteed a benefit 
equal to at least a return of employee contribution amounts.  Finally, it is useful to note 
that the governing documents for the Teachers’ Fund for Retirement do not contain the 
required provision and yet received a favorable determination letter several years ago. 

 If it is determined that correction is necessary, the appropriate method of correction is to 
file the Highway Patrol Plan documents under the VCP at the same time as a 
determination letter filing.   

6. A qualified defined benefit plan must provide for benefits that are “definitely 
determinable”, as described in Treasury Regulations section 1.401-1(b).  Generally, this 
means that the written plan must describe who is eligible to participate, how benefits may 
become vested and how benefits are calculated in a manner that employees can determine 
what benefits they are entitled to based on the written plan.  In addition, in order for 
benefits to be definitely determinable, there must not be any plan provisions that provide 
for benefits or contributions that are dependent upon the profits of the employer or 
benefits that are dependent upon the plan receiving the required contributions.  Definitely 
determinable rules also prohibit the use of forfeitures to increase benefits under the plan 
(see item 5 above) and require defined benefit plans to specify actuarial assumptions (see 
item 10 below). 



Mr. Sparb Collins 
December 1, 2008 
Page 4 

Various sections of the NDCC, Chapter 39-03.1 describe who is eligible to participate, 
how benefits may become vested and how benefits are calculated under the Highway 
Patrol Plan, and in this way appear to satisfy requirements for definitely determinable 
benefits.  In addition, the NDCC does not contain any of the provisions that are 
prohibited. 

7. Qualified plans must comply with minimum distribution requirements under Code 
section 401(a)(9), including incidental death benefit rules under paragraph (G) and the 
definition of required beginning date under paragraph (C).  Treasury Regulations section 
1.401(a)(9)-1 describes the provisions that a plan must contain in order to satisfy Code 
section 401(a)(9), including a description of the statutory rules under that Code section. 
However, Section 823 of the Pension Protection Act of 2006 (PPA) directed the Treasury 
to issue regulations under which a governmental plan is treated as satisfying the 
minimum distribution requirements if the plan satisfies a reasonable, good faith 
interpretation of the statutory requirements.  This means that so long as a governmental 
plan complies with a reasonable, good faith interpretation of the statutory requirements 
under Code section 401(a)(9), they do not have to comply with the detailed rules of the 
regulations.   

 NDCC §39-03.1-11.2 states that “The board shall administer the plan in compliance with 
… section 401(a)(9) …of the Internal Revenue Code in effect on August 1, 2007, as it 
applies for governmental plans.”  In light of Section 823 of the PPA, it appears that this 
language satisfies written plan requirements under Code section 401(a)(9). 

8. Qualified defined benefit plans must comply with benefit limitations under Code section 
415 and related regulations (See Code section 401(a)(16)).  Recently finalized Treasury 
Regulations indicate that a defined benefit plan may generally incorporate the provisions 
of Code section 415 by reference in the written plan document, but a few rules must be 
specifically included in plan language to the extent applicable.  For example, if the 
Highway Patrol Plan would like the dollar limitation to increase automatically when that 
amount is indexed under Code section 415(d), then the written plan must specify that the 
increase applies automatically.  Also, if the Highway Patrol Plan would like to apply the 
indexed limit to individuals who have had a separation from employment, then the 
written plan must specify that the indexed limit applies to those individuals.  Finally, if 
the Highway Patrol Plan may be required to be aggregated with another defined benefit 
plan under Code section 415, then the written plan must specify how benefits will be 
limited between the two plans. 

 NDCC §39-03.1-11.2 states that “The board shall administer the plan in compliance with 
section 415 …of the Internal Revenue Code in effect on August 1, 2007, as it applies for 
governmental plans.”  Therefore, the general rules under Code section 415 have been 
incorporated by reference.  In addition, we reviewed the revisions to NDCC §39-03.1-
11.2 made by draft bill number 90111.0100, and the language in that bill appears to 
specify the default rules under Code section 415 regulations, as described above.  We do 
not believe additional revisions would be required under in order to comply with Code 
section 415 regulations. 



Mr. Sparb Collins 
December 1, 2008 
Page 5 

9. A qualified plan must comply with compensation limitations under Code section 
401(a)(17).  Governmental plans may also provide for a higher, grandfathered 
compensation limit for participants in the plan prior to the plan year beginning in 1996, if 
the written plan is timely amended to provide for the grandfather rules.  NDCC §39-03.1-
11.2 states that “The board shall administer the plan in compliance with ... section 
401(a)(17) …of the Internal Revenue Code in effect on August 1, 2007, as it applies for 
governmental plans.”  Therefore, it appears that this language satisfies written plan 
requirements regarding compensation limitations under Code section 401(a)(17).  
However, it does not appear that the Highway Patrol Plan has been timely amended to 
provide for the grandfathered limit for governmental plans. 

10. In order to satisfy definitely determinable requirements, a qualified defined benefit plan  
must specify the actuarial assumptions utilized under the plan for purposes of actuarial 
adjustments of benefits under the plan in a way that precludes discretion by the employer, 
plan administrator or other fiduciary (See Code section 401(a)(25)).  IRS Revenue Ruling 
79-90 provides acceptable standards which satisfy this requirement, including specifying 
the actuarial assumptions in the written plan document or providing a table of adjustment 
factors to be used.  Administrative Code section 71-05-05-07 describes the actuarial 
reduction factors for early retirement as part of the written plan.  In addition, it is our 
understanding that the Highway Patrol Plan produces tables of adjustment factors for 
various optional forms of benefits under the Plan.  Thus, it appears that the written plan 
requirements under Code section 401(a)(25) are satisfied by the Administrative Code 
provisions and the adjustment factor tables. 

11. A qualified plan must provide for direct transfer of an eligible rollover distribution (as 
defined in Code section 402(c)(4)) to an eligible retirement plan (as defined in Code 
section 402(c)(8)) by a distributee (See Code section 401(a)(31)).  In the case of a 
mandatory distribution made without the employee’s consent that is more than $1,000, 
such distribution must be automatically rolled over into an individual retirement plan 
(IRA), unless the employee affirmatively elects otherwise (See Code section 
401(a)(31)(B), as amended by the Economic Growth and Tax Relief Reconciliation Act 
of 2001). 

 NDCC §39-03.1-11.2 states that “The board shall administer the plan in compliance with 
... section 401(a)(31)of the Internal Revenue Code in effect on August 1, 2007, as it 
applies for governmental plans.”  Therefore, it appears that this language satisfies written 
plan requirements regarding direct rollovers under Code section 401(a)(31).  However, 
NDCC §39-03.1-10.1 and Administrative Code section 71-05-06-01 indicate that the 
Highway Patrol Plan will automatically cashout accumulated member contributions if the 
employee terminates employment prior to completing at least ten years of eligible 
employment.  The Highway Patrol Plan’s governing documents do not contain specific 
language requiring automatic rollover to an IRA under such circumstances.  

 The IRS may consider the lack of such language a written plan qualification failure that 
must be corrected.  It is our understanding that proposed legislation for the 2008 session 
would add statutory language to the Plan complying with the automatic rollover rules by 



Mr. Sparb Collins 
December 1, 2008 
Page 6 

reducing the amount of mandatory distributions below the $1,000 threshold.  However, 
since this language would be adopted after the IRS deadline (as described in item 12 
below), it would be advisable to utilize the IRS’ Voluntary Compliance Program for 
correction.  The appropriate method of correction is to file the Highway Patrol Plan 
documents under the VCP at the same time as a determination letter filing. 

12. The Economic Growth and Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2001 (EGTRRA) amended 
several plan qualification requirements described in this letter, including increasing Code 
section 415 limitations, increasing Code section 401(a)(17) compensation limitations and 
provided additional, mandatory rules for direct rollovers under Code section 401(a)(31).  
A qualified plan who files a request for determination letter from the IRS under the 
appropriate cycle (for governmental plans it is Cycle C or Cycle E), may correct an 
EGTRRA provision as directed by the IRS during the determination letter process 
without a qualification failure, so long as the plan adopted an interim, good faith 
EGTRRA amended on a timely basis.  A good faith EGTRRA plan amendment is timely 
if it is adopted no later than the end of the plan year in which a qualification change is 
required to be made or is optionally made under the plan.  Governmental plans are 
afforded an extended deadline for adoption until the close of the first legislative session 
that begins after the effective date of any mandatory amendment.  However, for the 
changes related to an automatic rollover of a mandatory distribution (as described in item 
11 above), governmental plans do not have to be amended until the close of the first 
legislative session that begins on or after January 1, 2006.  Therefore, if the Highway 
Patrol Plan is submitted to the IRS for a determination letter, it may be important to 
demonstrate that NDCC §39-03.1-11.2, which references Code sections 415, 401(a)(17) 
and 401(a)(31), was updated in a timely manner for EGTRRA purposes. 

 Since the mandatory changes for direct rollover rules were effective for distributions after 
December 31, 2001, the Highway Patrol Plan should have adopted these changes by the 
end of the 2004 legislative session.  Assuming NDCC §39-03.1-11.2, which references 
Code section 401(a)(31) regarding direct rollover rules, was updated by the end of the 
2002 legislative session to reflect Code section 401(a)(31) in effect on August 1, 2003, it 
appears the statutes were timely amended for mandatory EGTRRA changes. 

13. In connection with a governmental plan that has never received a determination letter, the 
IRS has indicated they will only review written plan documentation back to the GUST  
amendments.  The term “GUST” refers to a group of laws that required plan qualification 
amendments by the end of the plan year beginning in 2001, including GATT (Uruguay 
Round Agreements Act), USERRA (Uniformed Services Employment and 
Reemployment Rights Act), SBJPA (Small Business Job Protection Act), TRA (Taxpayer 
Relief Act of 1997) and CRA (Community Renewal Tax Relief Act of 2000).  Based on 
our review of the Highway Patrol Plan, it appears that the written plan documentation is 
in compliance with the applicable GUST requirements, mainly by incorporating affected 
Code sections in NDCC §39-03.1-11.2 and including USERRA provisions in NDCC 
§39-03.1-10.3. 



Mr. Sparb Collins 
December 1, 2008 
Page 7 

14. Treasury Regulations section 1.401(a)-1(b) provide rules regarding permissible normal 
retirement ages, and such Regulations do not provide for a permissible normal retirement 
age that is based on a combination of age and service, such as the Highway Patrol Plan’s 
definition of normal retirement date in NDCC §39-03.1-11, subsection 3.  Therefore, it 
may be necessary to amend the Plan’s normal retirement age in the future in order to 
comply with these Regulations.  However, the IRS has indicated that although the 
requirements under these Regulations are included on cumulative list of required 
modifications for governmental plans, as set forth in IRS Notice 2007-94, they are not 
applicable for governmental plans until the plan year beginning on or after January 1, 
2011.  Thus, the IRS will not review governmental plan submissions for a determination 
letter under Cycle C for compliance with the normal retirement age regulations. 

We hope this discussion is helpful.  Once you have had an opportunity to review this 
information, it may be useful to set up a conference call to discuss your questions and comments.  
Please let us know if that is desirable.   

As always, the information contained in this letter is provide within our role as your benefits 
consultant and is not intended to provide tax or legal advice. 

Sincerely, 

 

Melanie Walker, JD 
Vice President 
 
 
cc:  Kathy Allen 
       Deb Knudsen 
       Cathie Eitelberg 
       Brad Ramirez, FSA, MAAA, EA 
 
 
5017258v1/01640.065 



 

THE SEGAL COMPANY 
5670 Greenwood Plaza Blvd., Suite 425  Greenwood Village, CO 80111-2499 
T 303.714.9900  F 303.714.9990  www.segalco.com 

DIRECT DIAL NUMBER 
(303) 714-9942 

E-MAIL ADDRESS 
mwalker@segalco.com 
 

 

 Benefits, Compensation and HR Consulting ATLANTA  BOSTON  CALGARY  CHICAGO  CLEVELAND  DENVER  HARTFORD  HOUSTON  LOS ANGELES   
 MINNEAPOLIS  NEW ORLEANS  NEW YORK  PHILADELPHIA  PHOENIX  PRINCETON  RALEIGH  SAN FRANCISCO  TORONTO  WASHINGTON, DC 

  
Multinational Group of Actuaries and Consultants BARCELONA  BRUSSELS  DUBLIN  GENEVA  HAMBURG  JOHANNESBURG  LONDON  MELBOURNE   
MEXICO CITY  OSLO  PARIS  

 

December 1, 2008 

Mr. Sparb Collins 
Executive Director 
State of North Dakota Public Employees' Retirement System 
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 
Bismarck, ND 58502 
 
Re: North Dakota PERS – Compliance review of the Hybrid Plan 

Dear Sparb: 

At your request, we reviewed statutory provisions governing the Hybrid Plan (mainly North 
Dakota Century Code Title 54, Chapter 52), as well as applicable sections of the North Dakota 
Administrative Code, Title 71.  Our review focused on written plan requirements for qualified 
defined benefit plans under Internal Revenue Code section 401(a), as applicable to governmental 
plans, and the IRS cumulative list of required modifications for governmental plans, as set forth 
in IRS Notice 2007-94.  Following is brief description of the written plan requirements and our 
findings with respect to each requirement: 

1. The written plan must include trust provisions (See Code section 401(a) and Treasury 
Regulations section 1.401-1(a)(2)).  This requirement appears to be satisfied by the 
language in North Dakota Century Code (NDCC) §54-52-14.1, which states “Such 
moneys must be placed for investment only with a firm … only after trust agreement or 
contract has been executed.” 

 In addition, NDCC §§21-10-02 and -06 describe the state investment board’s authority to 
invest the assets of the retirement system, and NDCC §§54-52-03 and -04 describe the 
retirement board’s authority to govern the Hybrid Plan.  

2. Plan contributions must be made to a trust by the employer, employees or both for the 
purpose of distributing benefits from the principal and income of the trust (See Code 
section 401(a)(1)).  NDCC §54-52-05, subsection 2 and §54-52-06 describe the employee 
and employer contributions that are required to be made to the retirement fund, 
respectively.  NDCC §54-52-04, subsection 6 indicates that retirement benefits are 



Mr. Sparb Collins 
December 1, 2008 
Page 2 

payable from the retirement fund with the following language:  “The funds necessary for 
paying prior service and service benefits ... and making withdrawal payments and 
refunds are hereby appropriate from the retirement fund for those purposes.” 

 In addition, governmental plans that provide for employer pick-up of mandatory 
employee contributions under Code section 414(h)(2), must satisfy the following 
requirements (See Rev. Rul. 2006-43): 

(a) specify that the contributions, although designated as employee contributions are 
being paid by the employer; 

(b) the employing unit must take formal action (memorialized in writing) to provide that 
contributions on behalf of a specific class of employees will be paid by the employing 
unit in lieu of employee contributions; and 

(c) not permit a participating employee to have the right to opt out of the pick-up or 
receive the contributed amounts directly. 

NDCC §54-52-05, subsection 3 indicates that employers may elect to pick-up employee 
contributions.  This subsection 3 states “Employees may not receive the contributed 
amounts directly once the employer has elected to pay the employee contributions. The 
amount paid must be paid by the employer in lieu of contributions by the employee.  … If 
contributions are paid by the employer, they must be treated as employer contributions in 
determining tax treatment … .”  Therefore, it appears that the requirements set forth in (a) 
and (c) above are satisfied.  In addition, Administrative Code section 71-02-06-06 
requires employers to make a written election to pick-up employee contributions, and 
therefore, the requirement set forth in (b) above is satisfied. 

3. A qualified plan must be maintained for the exclusive benefit of employees and their 
beneficiaries, and under the plan’s trust instrument, assets must not be diverted for any 
other purpose (See Code section 401(a)(2)).  This requirement appears to be satisfied by 
the language in NDCC §54-52-14.3, which states “All moneys from any source paid into 
any public employee retirement system fund … must be used and invested only for the 
exclusive benefit of the members, retirees, and beneficiaries of that system … .” 

4. Although governmental plans generally are not subject to the vesting rules set forth in 
Code section 411, they must satisfy pre-ERISA vesting rules set forth in Code section 
401(a)(7) in effect on September 1, 1974 (See Code section 411(e)(2)).  Pre-ERISA 
vesting rules require governmental plans to provide for 100% vesting at plan termination.  
The Hybrid Plan governing documents do not mention plan termination, and therefore do 
not provide for 100% vesting at plan termination.   

 The IRS may consider the lack of language requiring 100% vesting at plan termination a 
written plan qualification failure that must be corrected.  However, it may be acceptable 
to the IRS to demonstrate that the written plan does not permit termination, and thus there 
is no need to provide for 100% vesting at such occurrence.  In addition, it is our 



Mr. Sparb Collins 
December 1, 2008 
Page 3 

understanding that for current employees, the Hybrid Plan benefits are part of the 
employment contract with the employer, and therefore the Hybrid Plan could not be 
terminated for such employees.  Finally, it is useful to note that the governing documents 
for the Teachers’ Fund for Retirement does not contain the required provision and yet 
received a favorable determination letter several years ago. 

 If it is determined that correction is necessary, the appropriate method of correction is to 
file the Hybrid Plan documents under the IRS’ Voluntary Compliance Program (VCP) at 
the same time as a determination letter filing.  VCP requires that the plan adopt a 
corrective amendment and pay a specified penalty. 

5. A qualified plan must prohibit the use of forfeitures to increase the benefits of employees 
(See Code section 401(a)(8)).  The Hybrid Plan governing documents do not specifically 
prohibit or permit the use of forfeitures to increase benefits under the Plan.  The IRS may 
consider the lack of such language a written plan qualification failure that must be 
corrected.  However, it may be acceptable to the IRS to demonstrate that the written plan 
does not specifically provide for the use of forfeitures to increase benefits under the Plan 
and that operationally the Plan does not use forfeitures to increase benefits.  In addition, 
this position is strengthened by the fact that mandatory employee contributions to the 
Plan are not forfeited.  That is, employees are guaranteed a benefit equal to at least a 
return of employee contribution amounts.  Finally, it is useful to note that the governing 
documents for the Teachers’ Fund for Retirement does not contain the required provision 
and yet received a favorable determination letter several years ago. 

 If it is determined that correction is necessary, the appropriate method of correction is to 
file the Hybrid Plan documents under the VCP at the same time as a determination letter 
filing.   

6. A qualified defined benefit plan must provide for benefits that are “definitely 
determinable”, as described in Treasury Regulations section 1.401-1(b).  Generally, this 
means that the written plan must describe who is eligible to participate, how benefits may 
become vested and how benefits are calculated in a manner that employees can determine 
what benefits they are entitled to based on the written plan.  In addition, in order for 
benefits to be definitely determinable, there must not be any plan provisions that provide 
for benefits or contributions that are dependent upon the profits of the employer or 
benefits that are dependent upon the plan receiving the required contributions.  Definitely 
determinable rules also prohibit the use of forfeitures to increase benefits under the plan 
(see item 5 above) and require defined benefit plans to specify actuarial assumptions (see 
item 10 below). 

Various sections of the NDCC, Chapter 54-52 describe who is eligible to participate, how 
benefits may become vested and how benefits are calculated under the Hybrid Plan, and 
in this way appear to satisfy requirements for definitely determinable benefits.  In 
addition, the NDCC does not contain any of the provisions that are prohibited. 



Mr. Sparb Collins 
December 1, 2008 
Page 4 

7. Qualified plans must comply with minimum distribution requirements under Code 
section 401(a)(9), including incidental death benefit rules under paragraph (G) and the 
definition of required beginning date under paragraph (C).  Treasury Regulations section 
1.401(a)(9)-1 describes the provisions that a plan must contain in order to satisfy Code 
section 401(a)(9), including a description of the statutory rules under that Code section. 
However, Section 823 of the Pension Protection Act of 2006 (PPA) directed the Treasury 
to issue regulations under which a governmental plan is treated as satisfying the 
minimum distribution requirements if the plan satisfies a reasonable, good faith 
interpretation of the statutory requirements.  This means that so long as a governmental 
plan complies with a reasonable, good faith interpretation of the statutory requirements 
under Code section 401(a)(9), they do not have to comply with the detailed rules of 
regulations.   

 NDCC §54-52-28 states that “The board shall administer the plan in compliance with … 
section 401(a)(9) …of the Internal Revenue Code in effect on August 1, 2007, as it 
applies for governmental plans.”  In light of Section 823 of the PPA, it appears that this 
language satisfies written plan requirements under Code section 401(a)(9). 

8. Qualified defined benefit plans must comply with benefit limitations under Code section 
415 and related regulations (See Code section 401(a)(16)).  Recently finalized Treasury 
Regulations indicate that a defined benefit plan may generally incorporate the provisions 
of Code section 415 by reference in the written plan document, but a few rules must be 
specifically included in plan language to the extent applicable.  For example, if the 
Hybrid Plan would like the dollar limitation to increase automatically when that amount 
is indexed under Code section 415(d), then the written plan must specify that the increase 
applies automatically.  Also, if the Hybrid Plan would like to apply the indexed limit to 
individuals who have had a separation from employment, then the written plan must 
specify that the indexed limit applies to those individuals.  Finally, if the Hybrid Plan 
may be required to be aggregated with another defined benefit plan under Code section 
415, then the written plan must specify how benefits will be limited between the two 
plans. 

 NDCC §54-52-28 states that “The board shall administer the plan in compliance with 
section 415 …of the Internal Revenue Code in effect on August 1, 2007, as it applies for 
governmental plans.”  Therefore, the general rules under Code section 415 have been 
incorporated by reference.  In addition, we reviewed the revisions to NDCC §54-52-28 
made by draft bill number 90111.0100, and the language in that bill appears to specify 
the default rules under Code section 415 regulations, as described above.  We do not 
believe additional revisions would be required in order to comply with Code section 415 
regulations. 

9. A qualified plan must comply with compensation limitations under Code section 
401(a)(17).  Governmental plans may also provide for a higher, grandfathered 
compensation limit for participants in the plan prior to the plan year beginning in 1996, if 
the written plan is timely amended to provide for the grandfather rules.  NDCC §54-52-
28 states that “The board shall administer the plan in compliance with ... section 



Mr. Sparb Collins 
December 1, 2008 
Page 5 

401(a)(17) …of the Internal Revenue Code in effect on August 1, 2007, as it applies for 
governmental plans.”  Therefore, it appears that this language satisfies written plan 
requirements regarding compensation limitations under Code section 401(a)(17).  
However, it does not appear that the Hybrid Plan has been timely amended to provide for 
the grandfathered limit for governmental plans. 

10. In order to satisfy definitely determinable requirements, a qualified defined benefit plan  
must specify the actuarial assumptions utilized under the plan for purposes of actuarial 
adjustments of benefits under the plan in a way that precludes discretion by the employer, 
plan administrator or other fiduciary (See Code section 401(a)(25)).  IRS Revenue Ruling 
79-90 provides acceptable standards which satisfy this requirement, including specifying 
the actuarial assumptions in the written plan document or providing a table of adjustment 
factors to be used.  Administrative Code section 71-02-04-07 describes the actuarial 
reduction factors for early retirement as part of the written plan.  In addition, it is our 
understanding that the Hybrid Plan produces tables of adjustment factors for various 
optional forms of benefits under the Plan.  Thus, it appears that the written plan 
requirements under Code section 401(a)(25) are satisfied by the Administrative Code 
provisions and the adjustment factor tables. 

11. A qualified plan must provide for direct transfer of an eligible rollover distribution (as 
defined in Code section 402(c)(4)) to an eligible retirement plan (as defined in Code 
section 402(c)(8)) by a distributee (See Code section 401(a)(31)).  In the case of a 
mandatory distribution made without the employee’s consent that is more than $1,000, 
such distribution must be automatically rolled over into an individual retirement plan 
(IRA) unless the employee affirmatively elects otherwise (See Code section 
401(a)(31)(B), as amended by the Economic Growth and Tax Relief Reconciliation Act 
of 2001). 

 NDCC §54-52-28 states that “The board shall administer the plan in compliance with ... 
section 401(a)(31)of the Internal Revenue Code in effect on August 1, 2007, as it applies 
for governmental plans.”  Therefore, it appears that this language satisfies written plan 
requirements regarding direct rollovers under Code section 401(a)(31).  However, NDCC 
§54-52-17, subsection 7 indicates that the Hybrid Plan will automatically cashout an 
employee’s account balance (member contributions and any vested employer 
contributions) if the employee terminates employment prior to completing at least three 
years of eligible employment.  The Hybrid Plan’s governing documents do not contain 
specific language requiring automatic rollover to an IRA under such circumstances.  

 The IRS may consider the lack of such language a written plan qualification failure that 
must be corrected.  It is our understanding that proposed legislation for the 2008 session 
would add statutory language to the Plan complying with the automatic rollover rules by 
reducing the amount of mandatory distributions below the $1,000 threshold.  However, 
since this language would be adopted after the IRS deadline (as described in item 12 
below), it would be advisable to utilize the IRS’ Voluntary Compliance Program for 
correction.  The appropriate method of correction is to file the Hybrid Plan documents 
under the VCP at the same time as a determination letter filing. 



Mr. Sparb Collins 
December 1, 2008 
Page 6 

12. The Economic Growth and Tax Relief Reconciliation Act of 2001 (EGTRRA) amended 
several plan qualification requirements described in this letter, including increasing Code 
section 415 limitations, increasing Code section 401(a)(17) compensation limitations and 
provided additional, mandatory rules for direct rollovers under Code section 401(a)(31).  
A qualified plan who files a request for determination letter from the IRS under the 
appropriate cycle (for governmental plans it is Cycle C or Cycle E), may correct an 
EGTRRA provision as directed by the IRS during the determination letter process 
without a qualification failure, so long as the plan adopted an interim, good faith 
EGTRRA amended on a timely basis.  A good faith EGTRRA plan amendment is timely 
if it is adopted no later than the end of the plan year in which a qualification change is 
required to be made or is optionally made under the plan.  Governmental plans are 
afforded an extended deadline for adoption until the close of the first legislative session 
that begins after the effective date of any mandatory amendment.  However, for the 
changes related to an automatic rollover of a mandatory distribution (as described in item 
11 above), governmental plans do not have to be amended until the close of the first 
legislative session that begins on or after January 1, 2006.  Therefore, if the Hybrid Plan 
is submitted to the IRS for a determination letter, it may be important to demonstrate that 
NDCC §54-52-28, which references Code sections 415, 401(a)(17) and 401(a)(31), was 
updated in a timely manner for EGTRRA purposes.   

 Since the mandatory changes for direct rollover rules were effective for distributions after 
December 31, 2001, the Hybrid Plan should have adopted these changes by the end of the 
2004 legislative session.  Assuming NDCC §54-52-28, which references Code section 
401(a)(31) regarding direct rollover rules, was updated by the end of the 2002 legislative 
session to reflect Code section 401(a)(31) in effect on August 1, 2003, it appears the 
statutes were timely amended for mandatory EGTRRA changes. 

13. In connection with a governmental plan that has never received a determination letter, the 
IRS has indicated they will only review written plan documentation back to the GUST  
amendments.  The term “GUST” refers to a group of laws that required plan qualification 
amendments by the end of the plan year beginning in 2001, including GATT (Uruguay 
Round Agreements Act), USERRA (Uniformed Services Employment and 
Reemployment Rights Act), SBJPA (Small Business Job Protection Act), TRA (Taxpayer 
Relief Act of 1997) and CRA (Community Renewal Tax Relief Act of 2000).  Based on 
our review of the Hybrid Plan, it appears that the written plan documentation is in 
compliance with the applicable GUST requirements, mainly by incorporating affected 
Code sections and including USERRA provisions in NDCC §54-52-17.14. 

14. Treasury Regulations section 1.401(a)-1(b) provide rules regarding permissible normal 
retirement ages, and such Regulations do not provide for a permissible normal retirement 
age that is based on a combination of age and service, such as the Hybrid Plan’s rule of 
85 provisions in NDCC §54-52-17, subsection 3.  Therefore, it may be necessary to 
amend the Plan’s normal retirement age in the future in order to comply with these 
Regulations.  However, the IRS has indicated that although the requirements under these 
Regulations are included on cumulative list of required modifications for governmental 
plans, as set forth in IRS Notice 2007-94, they are not applicable for governmental plans 



Mr. Sparb Collins 
December 1, 2008 
Page 7 

until the plan year beginning on or after January 1, 2011.  Thus, the IRS will not review 
governmental plan submissions for a determination letter under Cycle C for compliance 
with these Regulations. 

We hope this discussion is helpful.  Once you have had an opportunity to review this 
information, it may be useful to set up a conference call to discuss your questions and comments.  
Please let us know if that is desirable.   

As always, the information contained in this letter is provide within our role as your benefits 
consultant and is not intended to provide tax or legal advice. 

Sincerely, 

 

Melanie Walker, JD 
Vice President 
 
 
cc:  Kathy Allen 
       Deb Knudsen 
       Cathie Eitelberg 
       Brad Ramirez, FSA, MAAA, EA 
 
 
5017172v1/01640.065 



 

THE SEGAL COMPANY 
5670 Greenwood Plaza Blvd., Suite 425  Greenwood Village, CO 80111-2499 
T 303.714.9900  F 303.714.9990  www.segalco.com 

DIRECT DIAL NUMBER 
(303) 714-9942 

E-MAIL ADDRESS 
mwalker@segalco.com 
 

 

 Benefits, Compensation and HR Consulting ATLANTA  BOSTON  CALGARY  CHICAGO  CLEVELAND  DENVER  HARTFORD  HOUSTON  LOS ANGELES   
 MINNEAPOLIS  NEW ORLEANS  NEW YORK  PHILADELPHIA  PHOENIX  PRINCETON  RALEIGH  SAN FRANCISCO  TORONTO  WASHINGTON, DC 

  
Multinational Group of Actuaries and Consultants BARCELONA  BRUSSELS  DUBLIN  GENEVA  HAMBURG  JOHANNESBURG  LONDON  MELBOURNE   
MEXICO CITY  OSLO  PARIS  

 

December 8, 2008 

Mr. Sparb Collins 
Executive Director 
State of North Dakota Public Employees' Retirement System 
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 
Bismarck, ND 58502 
 
Re:  North Dakota PERS – proposal to prepare IRS determination letter filing  

Dear Sparb: 

The purpose of this letter is to submit our written proposal to provide compliance services related 
to filing a determination letter request to the IRS for the North Dakota Public Employees’ 
Retirement System (PERS) in connection with PERS’ two defined benefit plans, the Hybrid Plan 
and the Highway Patrol Retirement System, as described below.  Our understanding of the 
desired scope of services, as well as our proposed timeline and fees, are as follows: 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

With respect to requested compliance services, the scope of services provided will include: 

 Preparing a packet of materials for PERS to review and submit to the IRS in order to request 
favorable determination letters for both plans on behalf of one employer only for each plan, 
presumably the State of North Dakota.  The completed forms will include Form 5300 
(application), Form 8717 (user fee) and Form 2848 (power of attorney), as well as any 
required attachments and a draft notice to interested parties.  The forms will be completed 
based on data that you provide to us.  PERS will be responsible for signing the forms, 
attaching a check for the user fee and distributing the notice to interested parties, as well as 
sending the final packet of materials to the IRS. 

 Completing forms and materials for PERS to review and submit to the IRS under the 
Voluntary Compliance Program (VCP) for correcting a plan amendment failure, if desired. 



Mr. Sparb Collins 
December 8, 2008 
Page 2 

 Assisting PERS in preparing any requested response to the IRS regarding particular 
compliance issues related to the IRS filing. 

PROPOSED TIMELINE 

We are able to complete the necessary forms, attachments and notice so that PERS can complete 
and send the filing by the IRS deadline for Cycle C Plan filings, January 30, 2009. 

FEES 

We propose that fees for preparing the packet of material to be filed with the IRS be charged on 
an hourly basis up to a maximum dollar amount of $5,000 each for the Hybrid Plan and Highway 
Patrol Retirement System ($10,000 total), to be billed to PERS upon completion of the project.  
In addition, we propose that, to the extent requested, fees for completing VCP forms and 
materials be charged on an hourly basis estimated at $2,000 each for the Hybrid Plan and 
Highway Patrol Retirement System ($4,000 total), to be billed to PERS upon completion of the 
project.  Finally, we propose that fees for assisting PERS in responding to IRS requests relating 
to the filing be charged on an hourly basis.  We are unable to provide an estimate of those 
charges due to the unknown scope of such services and likely unpredictable nature of the process 
for filing determination letter requests to the IRS. 

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal to PERS for compliance services related to 
IRS determination letter filings.  Please let us know if we can provide any additional 
information. 

Sincerely, 

 

Melanie Walker, JD 
Vice President 
 
cc:  Kathy Allen 
       Deb Knudsen 
       Cathie Eitelberg 
       Brad Ramirez, FSA, MAAA, EA 
 
5018322v1/01640.001 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb      
 
DATE:   December 9, 2008   
 
SUBJECT:  PERS Retirement Plan 
 
 
At this meeting we will have an update from Steve Cochrane on the investments and 
performance year to date.  At of the date of this memo the plan’s estimated year to date 
performance is -23% for PERS.  In this memo I want to: update you on what this means to 
the PERS plan, identify possible options/actions and discuss the implications to our 
proposed legislative agenda. 
 
 

PERS RETIREMENT PLAN 
 
2008 ACTUARIAL VALUATION 
 
In October we reviewed the following information relating to our funded status and the 
projected margin.   

Page 1 



2

Main - Funded Ratio

Actuarial
Accrued Actuarial Value

Liabilities of Assets
Year (millions) (millions)      Funded Ratio

1999  $831 $901 109%
2000 879 1,010 115%
2001 994 1,096 110%
2002 1,087 1,130 104%   
2003 1,170 1,145 98%
2004 1,251 1,172 94%
2005 1,333 1,210 91%
2006 1,450 1,286 89%
2007 1,576 1,470 93%
2008 1,700 1,571 92%

Funded Ratio at market value is 101% in 2008
  

 

North Dakota Public Employees 
Retirement System

5

North Dakota Main System
Projected Margins

(Market Return After FY 2009 Always 9.3%)

If Market Return for 
FY 2009 is June 30, 2009 June 30, 2010 June 30, 2011 June 30, 2012 June 30, 2013

-8% -2.46% -3.00% -3.61% -4.49% -4.89%
-6% -2.39% -2.85% -3.38% -4.18% -4.50%
-4% -2.32% -2.70% -3.14% -3.87% -4.12%
-2% -2.25% -2.54% -2.91% -3.56% -3.73%
0% -2.17% -2.39% -2.68% -3.25% -3.34%
2% -2.10% -2.24% -2.45% -2.94% -2.96%
4% -2.03% -2.09% -2.22% -2.64% -2.57%
6% -1.95% -1.93% -1.99% -2.33% -2.19%
8% -1.88% -1.78% -1.76% -2.02% -1.80%

Note: Projection reflects only investment return effects.
Assumes constant normal cost rate of 8.71% for Main.
The 2008 valuation margin is -2.11%.

 
The funded status on July 1, 2008 was 92% at actuarial value but even more importantly it 
was 101% at market value.  Therefore, at that time we were well funded especially as you 
look at it from a market perspective.  Secondly, as we looked at the projected margin being 
negative, the concern was mitigated since our funded status at market was 101% and if this 
calculation was done on market value the margin requirement would come down 
substantially almost to 0.  As is noted in the next section our market value of assets has 
turned negative and therefore these projections need to be viewed differently (please note 
that is we took the 2009 to a -20 return the projected margin would be about a -3.3%)    
 
 

Page 2 



LOW RETURNS – EFFECT ON PERS  
 
Since our meeting in October, their has been a seismic shift in our perspective on the 
economy.  With that in mind, I asked Segal to project the funded status of the plan at market 
value (the actuarial value will only recognize 20% of the loss; the market value perspective 
provides us the fullest assessment of the effect on the plan).  The following is that table 
based upon varying levels of returns (as noted by the arrow). 
 

 .  
As the above notes that as the projected loss for this year gets greater, the potential effect 
on the plan gets progressively more significant.   Again please note this is at market value 
but as it demonstrates that in the -20% to -26% return range the plan’s funded status at 
market drops from 101% to between 75% to 69%.  With 8% returns thereafter the plans 
funded status will only decrease.    
 
CONSIDERATIONS 
 
In recognition of the above potential, I asked Segal to examine this from the following 
perspectives: 
 

• What if we relied solely on a contribution increase to get back to 100% funded 
status? 

• What if we relied on investment returns to get back to 100% funded status? 
• What if we relied on both a contribution increase and investments to get back to 

100% funded status? 
 
I also asked them to look at this from the additional perspective of trying to recover in 10 
years or 20 years.   
 
 

Page 3 



What if we rely solely on a contribution to get back to 100% funded status? 
 

 
 
The above table shows: 
 

1. That if we had a -26% loss at the end of this year we would need a 10.7% increase in 
contributions to return to 100% funded status in 10 years 

2. That if we had a -20% loss at the end of this year we would need a 8.9% increase in 
contributions to return to 100% funded status in 10 years 

 
A related question is what if we do nothing at this time, wait, and make 8% investment 
return in the year following our loss? 
 

Page 4 



 
This table shows: 
 

1. By waiting 2 years the contribution required increases from 10.8% to 13.9% with a -
26% loss 

2. By waiting 2 years the contribution required increases from 10.2% to 11.4% with a -
20% loss 

 
The above table shows that if we rely solely upon a contribution increase for recovery it is 
very costly. The second table shows that there is cost to waiting to take action. 
 
What if we rely solely on investment earnings to get back to 100% funded status? 

 
The following table shows the level of earnings we would need over the next tens year to 
return to 100% funded status after various levels of loss this year. 
 

Page 5 



 
 
The above shows that: 
 

1. With a -26% loss this year we would need to get an average return of 12.8% for the 
next ten years to return to 100% 

2. With a -20% loss this year we would need to get an average return of 11.8% for the 
next ten years to return to 100% 

 
The next table shows the average return we would need if wanted to get back to 100% in 
the next 20 years: 
 

Page 6 



 
The above shows that: 
 

1. With a -26% loss this year we would need to get an average return of 10.8% for the 
next ten years to return to 100% 

2. With a -20% loss this year we would need to get an average return of 10.2% for the 
next ten years to return to 100% 

 
Given these return requirements, it raises the question as to what our historical returns have 
been since the plan’s inception.   Bryan looked back and found the following actual returns, 
the 10 year rolling average and the 20 year rolling average: 
 

NDPERS Returns
Annual

-10.00

-5.00

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

19
78

19
80

19
82

19
84

19
86

19
88

19
90

19
92

19
94

19
96

19
98

20
00

20
02

20
04

20
06

20
08

Year

%
 R

et
ur

ns

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NDPERS Returns
10-Year Rolling

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

Year

%
 R

et
ur

ns

 
NDPERS Returns

20-Year Rolling

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Year

%
 R

et
ur

ns

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8 



The statistics for the above tables are: 
 

 

 Average Median Standard Deviation 
Actual returns  9.59% 11.63% 7.25 
10 year rolling 
average 

10.13% 10.25% 1.16 

20 year rolling 
average 

10.22% 9.87% .75 

 
 
 
The above shows that our historical returns have been, depending on how you measure it, 
between 9.5% to 10.25%,   
 
Based upon the above perspectives: 
 

1. Over the 10 year time frame investment returns at the historical level will not return 
the plan to 10% funded status if the loss this year is more then about -8% 

2. Over the 20 year time frame investment returns could return the plan to 100% if the 
loss in -20% or less. 

3. At a -26% loss the plan would need a 10.8% annual return to get back to 100% in 20 
years 

 
 What if we rely solely on a contribution increase and investments to get back to 
100% funded status? 
 
Segal examined this by assessing the effect of a 1.3% contribution increase for 10 years 
and 20 years to determine the return required at varying levels of losses.  The following is 
the tables: 
 
 

Page 9 



 

 
 
 

Page 10 



The above shows: 
 

1. Over 20 years a 1.3% increase and an investment return within our historical range 
(9.5% to 10.25%) will get us a 100% funded level with a -20% to 26% loss this year/. 

2. Over 10 years we cannot return to 100% funded status if our returns are within our 
historical range (9.5% to 10.25%) and loss level on investments -20% to 26% this 
year. 

 
Similar to the above, Segal assessed the effect of a 2.3% contribution increase over a 10 
and 20 year period.   
 

 

Page 11 



 
 
 
The above shows: 
 

1. Over 20 years a 2.3% contribution increase with investment returns within our 
historical range (9.5% to 10.25%) will return us to 100% funded with a loss level of -
20% to 26% on investments this year. 

2. Over 10 years we cannot return to 100% funded status if our returns are within our 
historical range (9.5% to 10.25%) after a loss of -20% to 26% on investments this 
year. 

3. It would likely take about a 3% increase and historical returns to get back to 100% in 
10 years.   

 
 
OPTIONS 
 
The above information from Segal provides us many insights and a range of options emerge 
all of which are likely prudent actions at this time. The major reason we need to consider 
what action we want to take at this time, if any, is the legislative session.  If any action is to 
be taken relating to contributions it must be approved by the Legislature/Governor.  The 
session starts this January and the only scheduled meeting of the Legislative Employee 
Benefits Committee to which any action would have to be submitted is set for January 6, 
2009.  
 

Page 12 



The range of options can be arrayed for discussion purposes from most conservative to 
least conservative based upon the above data. 
 
 
Most conservative (rely solely on contributions for recovery) 
 

• Increase contributions by 10.7% on July 1, 2009 (assumes a -26% loss and a 10 year recovery) 
 
Conservative (take action immediately based upon a 10 year recovery with a contribution increase and assumed 
investment returns in the 10% range 
 

• Increase contributions by  3% on July 1, 2009 (consistent with a market return recovery in 10 years and the 
actuarial contribution requirement) 

 
 
Moderately Conservative (take action immediately based upon a 20 year recovery with a contribution 
increase and assumed investment returns in the 10% range)  
 

• Increase contribution by about 1.3% to 2% on July 1, 2009 
 
Least conservative (rely solely on investments for recovery at this time) 
 

• Do nothing at this time and monitor the situation 
• Returns would need to average 12.8% over the next 10 years to recover from -26% this year 
• Returns would need to average 10.8% over the next 20 years to recover from -26% this year   

 
  
UPCOMING MEETINGS 
 
Between the time you get this memo and the Board meeting, staff will be meeting with the 
PERS Benefits Committee and the PERS Retiree Committee.  We will review with them the 
above information and options and bring to the Board meeting their thoughts and 
conclusions for your consideration. 
 
Proposed Plan of Action 
 
At this point, staff would recommend that the Board review this information, the options and 
the suggestions of the PERS Benefits Committee and Retiree Committee at the December 
16th meeting.  At that time staff would suggest that the Board identify its preferred option for 
consideration.  Once identified, we would further suggest the following: 
 

1. Chair and Executive Director should meet with chair of LEBC before December 29th 
2. Interest groups, employers and employer organizations should be contacted to solicit input on the options and the 

preferred option  
3. Send newsletter to authorized agents 
4. PERS staff should solicit comments from OMB 
5. A special meeting of the PERS Board should be scheduled for December 29 or 30 to determine if the preferred 

option or other option should be pursued 
6. Present legislation, if needed, to the LEBC at the January 6th meeting. 
7. Inform members of Board’s considerations 

 

Page 13 



Please note that the above considerations also need to be addressed for the other plans 
administered by PERS including the Judges and the HP.  For the Law Enforcement plans 
and the National Guard, the Board has the authority to address contribution increases.   
 
Staffs Consideration 
 
At this point staffs preferred option would be: 
 

1. The conservative option with an increase in contribution of about 3% 
2. Any increase that would be proposed would only be for a two year period and 

therefore would require legislative approval and the Governors approval at each 
subsequent session.  

3. Any increase in contributions should also apply to the DC plan since their situation is 
equally as difficult and likely more so.   

4. That in addition during the upcoming 2 years we would review: 
a. The benefit structure including: 

i. The rate of interest we pay on member accounts 
ii. Possible changes and creation of tier 2 benefits level like TFFR 

b. Our annual expenses (97% of our annual expenses are for investments and 
this project is presently being worked by the PERS Investment Committee.  
They will present their findings and recommendations this spring.) 

c. Consider doing an asset/liability study after the session when we know what 
our contributions are going to be.  Based upon the above, we know that if 
contributions do not go up, we will need to more aggressively pursue returns.  

 
 

PERS LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 
 

At the November meeting the Board approved filing four proposed bills, two have actuarial, 
funding and contribution implications.  These bills are: 
 
90112 – this bill provides for a 13th check if funded status of the plan at market value is at 
least 105% and secondly provides for a 2% increase to retires if contributions are increased 
for two years as follows: 
 

Page 14 



Plan Provision 
Additional 
Liability Cost 

Statutory/ 
Approved 

Rate Total 

Main System $15,998,120 1.30%* 4.12% 5.42% 

National Guard $21,419 0.49% 6.50% 6.99% 

Law Enforcement with 
prior Main service $90,027 

 
0.80% 

 
8.31% 

 
9.11% 

Law Enforcement without 
prior Main service $593 

 
0.03% 

 
6.43% 

 
6.46% 

Highway Patrol $772,124 5.34% 16.70% 22.04% 
  

 
In addition to increasing contribution, it will require investment returns to fund the bill as 
identified in the following: 
 

 
8.00% 

(Valuation Rate) 

Total additional benefit payments $35,286,077 

Additional Contributions   18,262,842 

Expected earnings on additional 
contributions $17,023,235 

 
As the above notes, the total additional liability is about $35 million with about $18 million 
coming from contribution and the remaining $17 million from earnings.  If earnings fall short, 
then this will add to our unfunded liability.   
 
Given the above discussion about the PERS plan, it raises the following questions: 

1. If PERS needs a contribution increase to fund the existing plan, is it still appropriate 
to pursue this contribution increase as well? 

2. Should we take on the added liability risk when our investment portfolio is already 
challenged with the existing benefit obligations? 

3. Should we continue to maintain the 13th check part of this bill when the above 
information shows that it is almost impossible to achieve?  Removing it may allow our 
retirees to understand that this is not possible and pursue other options if they feel it 
appropriate. 

 
90114 – this bill provides for an increase in the retiree health credit of .50 cents and 
requires an increase in contributions of .14% to fund the benefit (the Governor did fund this 
in the executive budget).  Segal is running some projections on the status of this fund for 
your review at the meeting.  Given those results the questions will be similar to the above: 
 

1. Should we continue with the bill? 
2. Should we consider allocating the contribution to funding the plan instead of the 

benefit increase? 
Page 15 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb      
 
DATE:   December 8, 2008   
 
SUBJECT:  LC90118 
 
 
Attached is a copy of the most recent review of the proposed supplemental savings plan for 

state law enforcement personnel.  The Legislative Employee Benefits Committee had a 

meeting during the organizational session to review the report.  Also the Attorney General’s 

office reviewed the bill to determine if it was in violation of the Age Discrimination Act.  Since 

the bill proposed to discontinue this benefit based upon the age of the member, it was 

determined that was a violation.  The sponsor is going to prepare amendments to the bill 

and the committee is going to meet again on January 6. 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 















 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb      
 
DATE:   December 9, 2008   
 
SUBJECT:  Law Enforcement Transfer Policy 
 
 
Attached is a memo from Segal concerning establishing a policy for the transfer assets from 

PERS to the PERS Law Enforcement Plan when a new political subdivision joins with past 

service.   As you may recall when the 2007 actuarial report was done, we initiated a review 

of these transfers.  Part of the outcome of that review was the suggestion to establish a 

formal policy for the actuary.  Attached is that suggestion from Segal. 

 

Board Action Requested 

Adopt the attached policy for transfers.      



 

THE SEGAL COMPANY 
5670 Greenwood Plaza Blvd., Suite 425  Greenwood Village, CO 80111-2499 
T 303.714.9900  F 303.714.9990  www.segalco.com 

                    DIRECT DIAL NUMBER 
                    (303) 714-9952 

                    E-MAIL ADDRESS 
                    bramirez@segalco.com 
 

 

 Benefits, Compensation and HR Consulting ATLANTA  BOSTON  CALGARY  CHICAGO  CLEVELAND  DENVER  HARTFORD  HOUSTON  LOS ANGELES   
 MINNEAPOLIS  NEW ORLEANS  NEW YORK  PHILADELPHIA  PHOENIX  PRINCETON  RALEIGH  SAN FRANCISCO  TORONTO  WASHINGTON, DC 

  
Multinational Group of Actuaries and Consultants BARCELONA  BRUSSELS  DUBLIN  GENEVA  HAMBURG  JOHANNESBURG  LONDON  MELBOURNE   
MEXICO CITY  OSLO  PARIS  

 

December 3, 2008 

Mr. Sparb Collins 
Executive Director 
State of North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System 
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 
Bismarck, ND  58502 
 
Re: Asset Transfers for Law Enforcement Members With Prior Main Service 
 North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System 
 
Dear Sparb: 
 
The North Dakota PERS assets are currently subdivided for five groups: the Main System, 
Judges, National Guard, Law Enforcement Without Prior Main Service, and Law Enforcement 
With Prior Main Service. As members transfer from Main to Law Enforcement With Prior Main 
Service, associated assets are transferred to fund the plan. In 2004 an initial asset transfer was 
made from the Main to Law Enforcement With Prior Main Service reflecting the transfer of 
liability that took place when the plan began. An additional transfer was made as of March 1, 
2008 to reflect all transfers that occurred before July 1, 2007.  
 
Asset transfers that are not timely may cause the Law Enforcement With Prior Main Service 
actuarially determined cost rate to increase. We feel that these transfers should be performed at 
least annually. This letter outlines an annual process for making these transfers. The 
methodology provides that the asset transfer for all participants transferring plans in a plan year 
is made at the middle of the following plan year (January 1) but could take place at any date that 
is convenient, the only adjustment being the amount of interest applied. 
 
The proposed methodology is as follows: 
 
1.  After completion of the annual actuarial valuation, Segal verifies the identity of those 

transferring from Main to Law Enforcement With Prior Main Service with North Dakota 
PERS staff. The group being valued will be those transferring before July 1 of the 
valuation year. 



Mr. Sparb Collins 
December 3, 2008 
Page 2 
 
 
2. Segal requests and receives additional information from North Dakota PERS staff needed 

for the calculations, including the participants’ dates of transfer, amount of service in the 
Main plan prior to transfer, and salary at the time of transfer. 

 
3.  Segal calculates the amount of liability for service in the Main System for the transferring 

group based upon the most recent (July 1) valuation assumptions and methods. 
 
4.  Interest is applied from the date of the liability calculation (July 1) to the date of the asset 

transfer (January 1) at the valuation rate of return. Segal will provide the amount to North 
Dakota PERS staff as close to the end of the year as possible so that the transfer can be 
made near January 1. 

 
If this methodology is satisfactory, we will begin the process immediately for an asset transfer on 
December 31, 2008. Please let us know your comments.  
 
Thanks, 
 
 
 
Brad Ramirez, FSA, MAAA, EA 
Consulting Actuary 
 
/dqm 
 
 
 
 
5017821v1/01640.001 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Kathy & Sparb 
 
DATE:   December 9, 2008 
 
SUBJECT:  Medicare Blue Rx Contract 
 
 
Included for your review is the BCBS MedicareBlue Rx Retiree Prescription Drug Plan 
master contract.  This contract is renewed annually.  It has been reviewed for compliance by 
our legal counsel, Aaron Webb, and by PERS staff and no issues are noted.  Staff 
recommends approval of the contract for the January 1 through December 31, 2009 
contract period. 
 
 
Board Action Requested 
 
Approve staff recommendation. 
 
  



 

Group MedicareBlue Rx Retiree Prescription Drug Plan  
 

Master Contract 

Issued to: North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System, hereinafter “Group.” 

Address: 400 East Broadway 
Suite 505 
Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502 
 

Effective Date: 01/01/2009 

Issued By: Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Dakota* 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS Group MedicareBlue Rx is a Medicare Prescription Drug Plan providing 
prescription drug coverage through only one of the following plans: Wellmark Blue Cross and 
Blue Shield of Iowa*, Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Minnesota*, Blue Cross and Blue Shield of 
Montana*, Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Nebraska*, Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Dakota*, 
Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield of South Dakota*, and Blue Cross Blue Shield of 
Wyoming;* and 

WHEREAS Group wants to offer Medicare Part D prescription drug coverage to its eligible 
Medicare beneficiaries under the terms of this Group MedicareBlue Rx Retiree Prescription 
Drug Plan Contract, and  

WHEREAS Group must comply with Medicare restrictions in order to obtain Medicare Part D 
Group prescription drug coverage; and  

WHEREAS BCBS offers Medicare Part D prescription drug coverage through Group 
MedicareBlue Rx and is willing to provide Group’s eligible Medicare beneficiaries Part D 
coverage; 

NOW THEREFORE it is hereby agreed as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS 

1.1 Defined Terms.  Capitalized terms used in this Contract are defined herein or have the 
meaning set forth in the Medicare Part D Rules (42 C.F.R. Part 423).   

∗ Independent licensees of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association. 
 

1 



 

1.2 “BCBS” is the independent licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association, 
named above, that insurance coverage under this Addendum is Issued by. 

1.3 “CMS” is the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, the Federal Agency 
responsible for the Medicare program. 

1.4 “CMS Contract” is the Contract between BCBS and CMS pursuant to which BCBS 
offers Group MedicareBlue Rx coverage. 

1.5 “Enrollee” is a retired person (not an active employee) who (a) is eligible for Group’s 
retiree benefit plan, (b) is entitled to Medicare benefits under Medicare Part A or enrolled 
in Medicare Part B, (c) lives in the United States, and (d) is enrolled in MedicareBlue Rx 
under the procedures established in this Contract.  “Enrollee” may also be a dependent of 
an Enrollee described above, provided that the dependent (a) is eligible for Group’s 
retiree benefit plan, (b) is entitled to Medicare benefits under Medicare Part A or enrolled 
in Medicare Part B, (c) lives in the United States, and (d) is enrolled in MedicareBlue Rx 
under the procedures established in this Contract.   

1.6 “Group” is the employer, union, or other plan sponsor, named above, that insurance 
coverage under this Contract is Issued to. 

1.7 “Medicare Low Income Subsidy” is the Medicare Part D subsidy for which low-income 
Medicare beneficiaries are eligible under Subpart P of 42 C.F.R. Part 423. 

1.8 “Accretion” is the confirmation by CMS that the retiree meets the federal requirements 
to be enrolled the specified plan. 

1.9 “Involuntary Termination” is a termination that is requested by the Group rather than 
the Enrollee.  For example, the Group may terminate an Enrollee who no longer meets 
the Group’s eligibility criteria or who fails to pay premium. 

ARTICLE II 
 

PROVISION OF PRESCRIPTION DRUG COVERAGE 

2.1 Insurance Coverage.  BCBS shall provide Enrollees insurance coverage for prescription 
drugs in accordance with the Evidence of Coverage and Schedule of Copays and 
Limitations.  Group and BCBS shall comply with the terms of this Contract with respect 
to this coverage, except as otherwise required by rules or guidance issued by CMS, or as 
otherwise required by the CMS Contract. 

2.2 Evidence of Coverage.  BCBS shall provide Enrollees an Evidence of Coverage 
describing benefits, exclusions, and appeal rights. 

2.3 Plan Effective Date.  The effective date of this Contract is 12:00 a.m. Central Time of 
the Effective Date listed on page 1.  Each Contract month thereafter will begin on the 
first day of each calendar month and end on the first day of the next succeeding calendar 
month.  This Contract must be renewed annually by January 1. 

2 



 

ARTICLE III 
 

GROUP RESPONSIBILITIES 

3.1 Billing of Premium.  Under this Contract, the billing arrangements are as follows: 

Group Billing.  The Group will be responsible for payment of the “Premium Amount” 
for each Enrollee.  The first Contract charge is payable on the effective date of this 
Contract.  Monthly charges are payable on the first day of the each following month 
during the time this Contract is in effect. 

3.2 Premium Amount.  Under this Contract, all Premium Amounts are for a full month.  
Regardless of what day an Enrollee’s coverage under this Contract starts, the coverage, 
and the monthly premiums for their coverage, will start on the first of that month.  The 
“Premium Amount” as agreed to by the Group and BCBS for each Enrollee is determined 
as follows: 

Total Monthly Premium per Enrollee:  $63.70; 

Less any Low Income Subsidy applicable to the Enrollee, as determined by CMS; 

Plus any Late Enrollment Penalty applicable to the Enrollee, as determined by CMS. 

3.3 Retroactive Premium Adjustments.  The monthly charge will be determined from our 
record by the number of Enrollees who have been confirmed through the CMS Accretion 
process.  Retroactive adjustments will be made for additions and terminations of 
Enrollees and for Enrollees who have been confirmed through the CMS Accretion 
process after the initial billing statement.  For Groups that use the Group Billing option, 
any refund that is owed to an Enrollee must come from the Group. BCBS will only adjust 
the amount due of a Group and will not refund premium(s) paid to an Enrollee. 

3.4 Uniform Premium Requirement.  Group may determine how much, if any, of an 
Enrollee’s premium it will subsidize.  Group may subsidize different amounts for 
different classes of Enrollees, provided that classes are reasonable and based on objective 
business criteria, such as years of service, business location, job category, and nature of 
compensation (e.g. salaried versus hourly).  Classes may not be based on eligibility for 
the Medicare Low Income Subsidy.  Group’s subsidy may not vary for Enrollees within a 
class of Enrollees.  Group may not require any Enrollee to pay more each month than the 
Total Per Enrollee Per Month Premium, listed above. 

3.5 Benefit of Medicare Low Income Subsidy Premium.  Any premium received through 
the Medicare Low Income Subsidy must be applied first to the eligible Enrollee’s share 
of premium.  Group may not benefit from any premium received through the Medicare 
Low Income Subsidy until the eligible Enrollee’s premium is reduced to zero ($0.00). 

3.6 Verification of Residency.  The Group is responsible to verify residency for any 
Enrollee who has a residential address consisting of a Post Office Box.  The Group must 

3 



 

maintain this verification in accordance with records retention requirements.  In the case 
of an audit, the Group must be able to produce all applicable documentation. 

ARTICLE IV 
 

CANCELLATION 

4.1 BCBS Initiated Cancellation.  This Contract is guaranteed renewable and cannot be 
cancelled as a result of the claims experience or health status of your Group.  BCBS can, 
however, cancel or fail to renew this Contract for the following reasons: 

1. for nonpayment of the Group bill; 

2. for fraud or misrepresentation by the Group with respect to eligibility for 
coverage or any other material fact; 

3. when the Group has failed to comply with a material plan provision relating to 
employer contribution or Group participation rules. 

4. BCBS discontinues offering this product or all products in its service area; 

5. termination or non-renewal of the CMS Contract (BCBS will provide at least 90 
days notice); 

6. there is no longer any Enrollee who lives or resides in the service area. 

4.2 CMS-Initiated Cancellation.  CMS requires BCBS to terminate this Contract upon 
termination or non-renewal of the CMS Contract.  BCBS will provide the Group ninety 
(90) days notice before BCBS non-renews the CMS Contract and thereby terminates this 
Contract.  BCBS will provide the Group as much notice as reasonably practical of CMS’s 
termination or non-renewal of the CMS Contract.  The notice will include the termination 
date for this Contract. 

4.3 Group Initiated Cancellation.  The Group may cancel this Contract at the end of any 
Contract month by written notice received by BCBS at least 60 days prior to the effective 
date of cancellation, unless we have initiated Contract cancellation.  In the event of a 
Group-initiated cancellation, the Group must comply with the enrollee notification 
requirements for Involuntary Termination of Enrollee Coverage, described in Section 5.4, 
below. 

ARTICLE V 
 

GROUP RESPONSIBILITIES 

5.1 Timeliness of Enrollment Transactions.  The Group must provide enrollment and 
disenrollment requests within 7 calendar days of the date the request is made by an 
individual.  

4 



 

5.2 Residency Requirement for Retirees .  Retirees’ permanent residence must be in the 
United States in order to be eligible for MedicareBlue Rx.  

5.3 Involuntary Termination of Enrollee Coverage.   

1. BCBS Notification:  The Group agrees to report to BCBS any involuntary 
termination of an Enrollee’s coverage (e.g. if the Group determines an Enrollee is 
no longer eligible to participate in the plan). The notification must be at least prior 
to the effective date of termination and include information used to identify the 
correct Enrollee, the requested date of disenrollment, the designation that the 
disenrollment is involuntary, and the contact information and signature of the 
Group administrator sending the request.  Groups that use the electronic 
enrollment process must ensure that disenrollments (a) are sent on the electronic 
file prior to termination date, (b) explain the disenrollment is involuntary, and (c) 
include any other required file information. 

2. Enrollee Notification:  The Group must provide an involuntarily terminated 
Enrollee with advance notice of the termination at a minimum twenty-one (21) 
calendar days prior to the effective date of disenrollment.  The Enrollee’s 
notification must include all of the following components: 

A. notification of the Involuntary Termination; 

B. notice of other insurance options through the Group; 

C. reason for the termination; 

D. information on other individual plan options the beneficiary may 
choose and how to request enrollment; 

E. notification that the disenrollment means that the individual will not 
have Medicare drug coverage and the potential for late-enrollment 
penalties in the future; 

F. explanation on how to contact Medicare for more information about 
other Medicare Part D plan options that might be available to the 
individual. 

5.4 Voluntary Enrollee Disenrollment.  For Groups that use the electronic enrollment 
process, the Group must notify the plan of employees who wish to voluntarily disenroll 
from coverage.  The disenrollment information must accurately reflect the Group’s record 
of disenrollment made by each individual according the process the Group has in place.> 

5.5 Group Enrollment.  The Group is responsible for maintaining all enrollment records in a 
manner that can be easily, accurately and quickly reproduced. The Group must provide 
BCBS all required data elements for each Enrollee, including retirees who become 
eligible for coverage under the Group after the Plan Effective Date.   

5 



 

ARTICLE VI 
 

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

6.1 Application of State Insurance Law.  State Insurance laws, such as laws guaranteeing 
renewability of insurance Contracts, generally do not apply to this Contract.  Such laws 
are preempted by the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act 
of 2003, Pub. L. 108-173, 117 Stat. 2066.  See Social Security Act § 1860D-12(g) (42 
U.S.C. § 1395w-112(g)); accord, 42 C.F.R. §§ 422.402, 423.440(a).  The terms of this 
Contract and Group MedicareBlue Rx coverage are therefore regulated primarily by 
Federal law. 

6.2 Medicare Secondary Payer.  Federal law requires BCBS to identify other payers that 
are responsible for Enrollees’ medical, prescription drug, and other costs covered by the 
plan and that are primary to Medicare, identify amounts payable by those payers, and 
coordinate benefits with those payers.  BCBS may bill these payers or authorize providers 
to bill these payers and, to the extent an Enrollee has been paid for MedicareBlue Rx-
covered goods or services by another payer, BCBS may bill the Enrollee.  Upon request, 
Group shall provide BCBS and CMS information that Group has on Enrollees’ other 
insurance coverage for purposes of this coordination of benefits.  Federal law preempts 
State laws and Contractual provisions that interfere with Group MedicareBlue Rx’s 
ability to coordinate benefits in accordance with CMS guidelines.  See 42 C.F.R. 
§§ 422.108(f), 422.402, 423.462, 423.440(a). 

6.3 Enrollee Communications.  BCBS may send CMS required Enrollee communications 
without the consent of the Group.  Samples of all required materials can be made 
available to Group for informational purposes. 

6.4 Contract Interpretation.  BCBS has discretionary authority to determine Enrollees’ 
eligibility for benefits and to construe the provisions of the Group Evidence of Coverage 
and this Contract. 

6.5 Prohibited Claim Payments.  BCBS does not pay claims to providers or to members for 
services received in countries that are sanctioned by the United States Department of 
Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC), except for medical emergency 
services when payment of such services is authorized by OFAC. Countries currently 
sanctioned by OFAC include Cuba, Iran, and Syria. OFAC may add or remove countries 
from time to time. 

6.6 Acceptance of the Contract.  Payment to BCBS by Group (either by direct check or 
EFT) or by any Enrollee (under Direct Billing) will signify Group’s acceptance of all 
terms, conditions, and obligations of this Contract. Acceptance will be effective on the 
effective date of this Contract. 

6 



 

7 

Note: 

This Contract and Evidence of Coverage (EOC) make up the entire Contract of coverage. The 
Group on behalf of itself and its Enrollees hereby expressly acknowledges its understanding that 
this agreement constitutes a Contract solely between [Group Name], in its capacities as Plan 
Sponsor, Plan Administrator, and as agent on behalf of the Plan and BCBS, that BCBS is an 
independent corporation operating under a license from the Blue Cross and Blue Shield 
Association, an association of independent Blue Cross and Blue Shield Plans, (the 
“Association”) permitting BCBS to use the Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield Service Marks, and 
that BCBS is not Contracting as the agent of the Association. The Group further acknowledges 
and agrees that it has not entered into this agreement based upon representations by any person 
other than BCBS and that no person, entity, or organization other than BCBS shall be held 
accountable or liable to the Group for any of BCBS’s obligations to the Group created under this 
agreement. This paragraph shall not create any additional obligations whatsoever on the part of 
BCBS other than those obligations created under other provisions of this agreement.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: 

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF 
RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PLAN SPONSOR) NORTH DAKOTA* 
PO Box 1657      4510 13th Avenue South 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502   Fargo, North Dakota 58121 
 
 
By: _______________________________  __________________________________ 
 
Title: Chairman, NDPERS Board          Its President and CEO 
 
Date: ______________________________  Date: _____________________________ 
 
 
 
*An Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Kathy & Sparb     
 
DATE:   December 8, 2008   
 
SUBJECT:  Dakota Retiree Plan – Amendment and Rate Structure Update 
 
 
Attached is the amendment to the Dakota Retiree Plan Administrative Services Agreement for 
update to the premium structure for the MedicareBlue RX Part D prescription drug plan.   The rate 
increased from $56.40 to $63.70 per member which is a 12.94% increase.  The rate update is 
effective January 1, 2009.  The rates have been reviewed and verified by staff.  Staff recommends 
approval of the amendment for the rate adjustment. 
 
 
Board Action Requested 
 
Approve the amendment for the update to the Medicare Part D rates.  



NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM DAKOTA PLAN 
 

DAKOTA RETIREE PLAN 
 
 

AMENDMENT 
 

This amendment is to be effective January 1, 2009 through June 30, 2009. Please read this amendment carefully 
and keep it with your Benefit Plan document for future reference. 
 
Section 6.0, FEES AND CHARGES, of the Administrative Service Agreement is amended as outlined in the 
attached table of contract rates.  
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed, in their names by their 
undersigned officers, the same being duly authorized to do so. 
 
 
NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF NORTH DAKOTA* 
RETIREMENT SYSTEM 4510 13th Avenue South 
(PLAN SPONSOR) Fargo, North Dakota 58121-0001 
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 
Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502 
 

By: _________________________________  

 
Title: _________________________________ Its President and CEO 
 
 
Date: _________________________________ Date: December 1, 2008 
 
 
NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES 
RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
(PLAN ADMINISTRATOR) 
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 
Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
 
 
Title: ___________________________________ 
 
 
Date: ___________________________________ 
 
 
 
Effective Dates: 01/01/2009 – 06/30/2009 
Amendment 
 
 
* An Independent Licensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association. 



NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
PREMIUM RATE STRUCTURE FOR THE 2007-2009 BIENNIUM

Rate Structure A (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
July 1, 2007 - December 31, 2007 (3)+(4)+(5)

(1)-(2) Wellness Total (6)+(7)
 Total Less Total Programs Medicare Monthly Plus NDPERS

BCBSND NDPERS Premium to & Disease Part D Paid to NDPERS Billing
Code Description Bid Retention BCBSND Mgmt Premium BCBSND Retention Rate
Political Subdivision Rates with Wellness Program
Active EPO/PPO/Basic
1 4 Single $335.31 $2.80 $332.51 $4.25 $336.76 $2.80 $339.56
2 4 Family $813.33 $2.80 $810.53 $4.25 $814.78 $2.80 $817.58
COBRA
4 4 Single $335.31 $2.80 $332.51 $4.25 $336.76 $9.51 $346.27
5 4 Family $813.33 $2.80 $810.53 $4.25 $814.78 $19.07 $833.85

Active EPO/Basic
1 6 Single $312.05 $2.80 $309.25 $4.25 $313.50 $2.80 $316.30
2 6 Family $756.61 $2.80 $753.81 $4.25 $758.06 $2.80 $760.86
COBRA
4 6 Single $312.05 $2.80 $309.25 $4.25 $313.50 $9.04 $322.54
5 6 Family $756.61 $2.80 $753.81 $4.25 $758.06 $17.93 $775.99

Political Subdivision Rates w/o Wellness Program
Active EPO/PPO/Basic
1 3 Single $335.31 $2.80 $332.51 $4.25 $336.76 $6.20 $342.96
2 3 Family $813.33 $2.80 $810.53 $4.25 $814.78 $10.98 $825.76
COBRA
4 3 Single $335.31 $2.80 $332.51 $4.25 $336.76 $9.51 $346.27
5 3 Family $813.33 $2.80 $810.53 $4.25 $814.78 $19.07 $833.85

Active EPO/Basic
1 5 Single $312.05 $2.80 $309.25 $4.25 $313.50 $5.96 $319.46
2 5 Family $756.61 $2.80 $753.81 $4.25 $758.06 $10.41 $768.47
COBRA
4 5 Single $312.05 $2.80 $309.25 $4.25 $313.50 $9.04 $322.54
5 5 Family $756.61 $2.80 $753.81 $4.25 $758.06 $17.93 $775.99

State Contracts with Wellness Program
Active
1-3 2 S/F/Dual $653.83 $2.80 $651.03 $4.25 $655.28 $2.80 $658.08
COBRA
4 2 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $9.08 $324.58
5 2 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $18.00 $779.22
Part-Time/Temporary/LOA
6 2 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $2.80 $318.30
7 2 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $2.80 $764.02

State Contracts w/o Wellness Program
Active
1-3 1 S/F/Dual $653.83 $2.80 $651.03 $4.25 $655.28 $9.38 $664.66
COBRA
4 1 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $9.08 $324.58
5 1 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $18.00 $779.22
Part-Time/Temporary/LOA
6 1 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $5.98 $321.48
7 1 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $10.44 $771.66



NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
PREMIUM RATE STRUCTURE FOR THE 2007-2009 BIENNIUM

Rate Structure A (cont'd) (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
July 1, 2007 - December 31, 2007 (3)+(4)+(5)

(1)-(2) Wellness Total (6)+(7)
 Total Less Total Programs Medicare Monthly Plus NDPERS

BCBSND NDPERS Premium to & Disease Part D Paid to NDPERS Billing
Code Description Bid Retention BCBSND Mgmt Premium BCBSND Retention Rate
Non-Medicare Retiree
21 11 Single $471.09 $2.80 $468.29 $4.25 $472.54 $2.80 $475.34
22 11 Family $942.17 $2.80 $939.37 $4.25 $943.62 $2.80 $946.42
23 11 Family (3+) $1,177.73 $2.80 $1,174.93 $4.25 $1,179.18 $2.80 $1,181.98
COBRA
24 11 Single $471.09 $2.80 $468.29 $4.25 $472.54 $7.97 $480.51
25 11 Family $942.17 $2.80 $939.37 $4.25 $943.62 $17.38 $961.00
26 11 Family (3+) $1,177.73 $2.80 $1,174.93 $4.25 $1,179.18 $22.09 $1,201.27

Medicare Retiree
41 11 1 Medicare only $154.06 $2.80 $151.26 $0.00 $60.14 $211.40 $2.80 $214.20
42 11 2 Medicare only $298.18 $2.80 $295.38 $0.00 $120.28 $415.66 $2.80 $418.46
50 11 3 Medicare only $317.02 $2.80 $314.22 $0.00 $180.42 $494.64 $2.80 $497.44
51 11 4 Medicare only $194.66 $2.80 $191.86 $0.00 $240.56 $432.42 $2.80 $435.22
43 11 1 Medicare+Others $561.74 $2.80 $558.94 $0.00 $60.14 $619.08 $2.80 $621.88
49 11 2 Medicare+Others $439.38 $2.80 $436.58 $0.00 $120.28 $556.86 $2.80 $559.66
55 11 3 Medicare+Others $317.02 $2.80 $314.22 $0.00 $180.42 $494.64 $2.80 $497.44
44 11 Part A Single $424.32 $2.80 $421.52 $0.00 $60.14 $481.66 $2.80 $484.46
COBRA
46 11 1 Medicare only $154.06 $2.80 $151.26 $0.00 $60.14 $211.40 $7.08 $218.48
47 11 2 Medicare only $298.18 $2.80 $295.38 $0.00 $120.28 $415.66 $11.16 $426.82
53 11 3 Medicare only $317.02 $2.80 $314.22 $0.00 $180.42 $494.64 $12.74 $507.38
54 11 4 Medicare only $194.66 $2.80 $191.86 $0.00 $240.56 $432.42 $11.50 $443.92
48 11 1 Medicare+Others $561.74 $2.80 $558.94 $0.00 $60.14 $619.08 $15.24 $634.32
52 11 2 Medicare+Others $439.38 $2.80 $436.58 $0.00 $120.28 $556.86 $13.98 $570.84
56 11 3 Medicare+Others $317.02 $2.80 $314.22 $0.00 $180.42 $494.64 $12.74 $507.38
Medicare Low Income Subsidy
41 13 1 Medicare only (1cr) $154.06 $2.80 $151.26 $0.00 $32.79 $184.05 $2.80 $186.85
42 13 2 Medicare only (2cr) $298.18 $2.80 $295.38 $0.00 $65.58 $360.96 $2.80 $363.76
50 13 3 Medicare only (1cr) $317.02 $2.80 $314.22 $0.00 $153.07 $467.29 $2.80 $470.09
43 13 1 Medicare+Others (1cr) $561.74 $2.80 $558.94 $0.00 $32.79 $591.73 $2.80 $594.53
49 13 2 Medicare+Others (1cr) $439.38 $2.80 $436.58 $0.00 $92.93 $529.51 $2.80 $532.31
61 13 1 Medicare only (.75cr) $154.06 $2.80 $151.26 $0.00 $39.63 $190.89 $2.80 $193.69
71 13 1 Medicare only (.5cr) $154.06 $2.80 $151.26 $0.00 $46.46 $197.72 $2.80 $200.52
72 13 2 Medicare only (1cr) $298.18 $2.80 $295.38 $0.00 $92.93 $388.31 $2.80 $391.11

(1) - BCBSND premium rates, per bid.
(2) - Per contract charge retained by NDPERS
(3) - Total premium paid to BCBSND.
(4) - Wellness Programs and Disease Management submitted to BCBSND.
(5) - Medicare Part D Premium submitted to BCBSND.
(6) - Amount of premium NDPERS will send to BCBSND.
(7) - Per contract charge retained by NDPERS.
(8) - Premium amount NDPERS will bill its contract holders.



NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
PREMIUM RATE STRUCTURE FOR THE 2007-2009 BIENNIUM

Rate Structure A (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
January 1, 2008 - December 31, 2008 (3)+(4)+(5)

(1)-(2) Wellness Total (6)+(7)
 Total Less Total Programs Medicare Monthly Plus NDPERS

BCBSND NDPERS Premium to & Disease Part D Paid to NDPERS Billing
Code Description Bid Retention BCBSND Mgmt Premium BCBSND Retention Rate
Political Subdivision Rates with Wellness Program
Active EPO/PPO/Basic
1 4 Single $335.31 $2.80 $332.51 $4.25 $336.76 $2.80 $339.56
2 4 Family $813.33 $2.80 $810.53 $4.25 $814.78 $2.80 $817.58
COBRA
4 4 Single $335.31 $2.80 $332.51 $4.25 $336.76 $9.51 $346.27
5 4 Family $813.33 $2.80 $810.53 $4.25 $814.78 $19.07 $833.85

Active EPO/Basic
1 6 Single $312.05 $2.80 $309.25 $4.25 $313.50 $2.80 $316.30
2 6 Family $756.61 $2.80 $753.81 $4.25 $758.06 $2.80 $760.86
COBRA
4 6 Single $312.05 $2.80 $309.25 $4.25 $313.50 $9.04 $322.54
5 6 Family $756.61 $2.80 $753.81 $4.25 $758.06 $17.93 $775.99

Political Subdivision Rates w/o Wellness Program
Active EPO/PPO/Basic
1 3 Single $335.31 $2.80 $332.51 $4.25 $336.76 $6.20 $342.96
2 3 Family $813.33 $2.80 $810.53 $4.25 $814.78 $10.98 $825.76
COBRA
4 3 Single $335.31 $2.80 $332.51 $4.25 $336.76 $9.51 $346.27
5 3 Family $813.33 $2.80 $810.53 $4.25 $814.78 $19.07 $833.85

Active EPO/Basic
1 5 Single $312.05 $2.80 $309.25 $4.25 $313.50 $5.96 $319.46
2 5 Family $756.61 $2.80 $753.81 $4.25 $758.06 $10.41 $768.47
COBRA
4 5 Single $312.05 $2.80 $309.25 $4.25 $313.50 $9.04 $322.54
5 5 Family $756.61 $2.80 $753.81 $4.25 $758.06 $17.93 $775.99

State Contracts with Wellness Program
Active
1-3 2 S/F/Dual $653.83 $2.80 $651.03 $4.25 $655.28 $2.80 $658.08
COBRA
4 2 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $9.08 $324.58
5 2 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $18.00 $779.22
Part-Time/Temporary/LOA
6 2 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $2.80 $318.30
7 2 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $2.80 $764.02

State Contracts w/o Wellness Program
Active
1-3 1 S/F/Dual $653.83 $2.80 $651.03 $4.25 $655.28 $9.38 $664.66
COBRA
4 1 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $9.08 $324.58
5 1 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $18.00 $779.22
Part-Time/Temporary/LOA
6 1 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $5.98 $321.48
7 1 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $10.44 $771.66



NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
PREMIUM RATE STRUCTURE FOR THE 2007-2009 BIENNIUM

Rate Structure A (cont'd) (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
January 1, 2008 - December 31, 2008 (3)+(4)+(5)

(1)-(2) Wellness Total (6)+(7)
 Total Less Total Programs Medicare Monthly Plus NDPERS

BCBSND NDPERS Premium to & Disease Part D Paid to NDPERS Billing
Code Description Bid Retention BCBSND Mgmt Premium BCBSND Retention Rate
Non-Medicare Retiree
21 11 Single $471.09 $2.80 $468.29 $4.25 $472.54 $2.80 $475.34
22 11 Family $942.17 $2.80 $939.37 $4.25 $943.62 $2.80 $946.42
23 11 Family (3+) $1,177.73 $2.80 $1,174.93 $4.25 $1,179.18 $2.80 $1,181.98
COBRA
24 11 Single $471.09 $2.80 $468.29 $4.25 $472.54 $7.97 $480.51
25 11 Family $942.17 $2.80 $939.37 $4.25 $943.62 $17.38 $961.00
26 11 Family (3+) $1,177.73 $2.80 $1,174.93 $4.25 $1,179.18 $22.09 $1,201.27

Medicare Retiree
41 11 1 Medicare only $154.06 $2.80 $151.26 $0.00 $56.40 $207.66 $2.80 $210.46
42 11 2 Medicare only $298.18 $2.80 $295.38 $0.00 $112.80 $408.18 $2.80 $410.98
50 11 3 Medicare only $317.02 $2.80 $314.22 $0.00 $169.20 $483.42 $2.80 $486.22
51 11 4 Medicare only $194.66 $2.80 $191.86 $0.00 $225.60 $417.46 $2.80 $420.26
43 11 1 Medicare+Others $561.74 $2.80 $558.94 $0.00 $56.40 $615.34 $2.80 $618.14
49 11 2 Medicare+Others $439.38 $2.80 $436.58 $0.00 $112.80 $549.38 $2.80 $552.18
55 11 3 Medicare+Others $317.02 $2.80 $314.22 $0.00 $169.20 $483.42 $2.80 $486.22
44 11 Part A Single $424.32 $2.80 $421.52 $0.00 $56.40 $477.92 $2.80 $480.72
COBRA
46 11 1 Medicare only $154.06 $2.80 $151.26 $0.00 $56.40 $207.66 $7.00 $214.66
47 11 2 Medicare only $298.18 $2.80 $295.38 $0.00 $112.80 $408.18 $11.02 $419.20
53 11 3 Medicare only $317.02 $2.80 $314.22 $0.00 $169.20 $483.42 $12.52 $495.94
54 11 4 Medicare only $194.66 $2.80 $191.86 $0.00 $225.60 $417.46 $11.20 $428.66
48 11 1 Medicare+Others $561.74 $2.80 $558.94 $0.00 $56.40 $615.34 $15.16 $630.50
52 11 2 Medicare+Others $439.38 $2.80 $436.58 $0.00 $112.80 $549.38 $13.84 $563.22
56 11 3 Medicare+Others $317.02 $2.80 $314.22 $0.00 $169.20 $483.42 $12.52 $495.94
Medicare Low Income Subsidy
41 13 1 Medicare only (1cr) $154.06 $2.80 $151.26 $0.00 $28.50 $179.76 $2.80 $182.56
42 13 2 Medicare only (2cr) $298.18 $2.80 $295.38 $0.00 $57.00 $352.38 $2.80 $355.18
50 13 3 Medicare only (1cr) $317.02 $2.80 $314.22 $0.00 $141.30 $455.52 $2.80 $458.32
43 13 1 Medicare+Others (1cr) $561.74 $2.80 $558.94 $0.00 $28.50 $587.44 $2.80 $590.24
49 13 2 Medicare+Others (1cr) $439.38 $2.80 $436.58 $0.00 $84.90 $521.48 $2.80 $524.28
61 13 1 Medicare only (.75cr) $154.06 $2.80 $151.26 $0.00 $35.50 $186.76 $2.80 $189.56
71 13 1 Medicare only (.5cr) $154.06 $2.80 $151.26 $0.00 $42.40 $193.66 $2.80 $196.46
72 13 2 Medicare only (1cr) $298.18 $2.80 $295.38 $0.00 $84.90 $380.28 $2.80 $383.08

13 4 Medicare only (1cr) $194.66 $2.80 $191.86 $0.00 $197.70 $389.56 $2.80 $392.36

(1) - BCBSND premium rates, per bid.
(2) - Per contract charge retained by NDPERS
(3) - Total premium paid to BCBSND.
(4) - Wellness Programs and Disease Management submitted to BCBSND.
(5) - Medicare Part D Premium submitted to BCBSND.
(6) - Amount of premium NDPERS will send to BCBSND.
(7) - Per contract charge retained by NDPERS.
(8) - Premium amount NDPERS will bill its contract holders.



NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
PREMIUM RATE STRUCTURE FOR THE 2007-2009 BIENNIUM

Rate Structure A (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
January 1, 2009 - June 30, 2009 (3)+(4)+(5)

(1)-(2) Wellness Total (6)+(7)
 Total Less Total Programs Medicare Monthly Plus NDPERS

BCBSND NDPERS Premium to & Disease Part D Paid to NDPERS Billing
Code Description Bid Retention BCBSND Mgmt Premium BCBSND Retention Rate
Political Subdivision Rates with Wellness Program
Active EPO/PPO/Basic
1 4 Single $335.31 $2.80 $332.51 $4.25 $336.76 $2.80 $339.56
2 4 Family $813.33 $2.80 $810.53 $4.25 $814.78 $2.80 $817.58
COBRA
4 4 Single $335.31 $2.80 $332.51 $4.25 $336.76 $9.51 $346.27
5 4 Family $813.33 $2.80 $810.53 $4.25 $814.78 $19.07 $833.85

Active EPO/Basic
1 6 Single $312.05 $2.80 $309.25 $4.25 $313.50 $2.80 $316.30
2 6 Family $756.61 $2.80 $753.81 $4.25 $758.06 $2.80 $760.86
COBRA
4 6 Single $312.05 $2.80 $309.25 $4.25 $313.50 $9.04 $322.54
5 6 Family $756.61 $2.80 $753.81 $4.25 $758.06 $17.93 $775.99

Political Subdivision Rates w/o Wellness Program
Active EPO/PPO/Basic
1 3 Single $335.31 $2.80 $332.51 $4.25 $336.76 $6.20 $342.96
2 3 Family $813.33 $2.80 $810.53 $4.25 $814.78 $10.98 $825.76
COBRA
4 3 Single $335.31 $2.80 $332.51 $4.25 $336.76 $9.51 $346.27
5 3 Family $813.33 $2.80 $810.53 $4.25 $814.78 $19.07 $833.85

Active EPO/Basic
1 5 Single $312.05 $2.80 $309.25 $4.25 $313.50 $5.96 $319.46
2 5 Family $756.61 $2.80 $753.81 $4.25 $758.06 $10.41 $768.47
COBRA
4 5 Single $312.05 $2.80 $309.25 $4.25 $313.50 $9.04 $322.54
5 5 Family $756.61 $2.80 $753.81 $4.25 $758.06 $17.93 $775.99

State Contracts with Wellness Program
Active
1-3 2 S/F/Dual $653.83 $2.80 $651.03 $4.25 $655.28 $2.80 $658.08
COBRA
4 2 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $9.08 $324.58
5 2 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $18.00 $779.22
Part-Time/Temporary/LOA
6 2 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $2.80 $318.30
7 2 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $2.80 $764.02

State Contracts w/o Wellness Program
Active
1-3 1 S/F/Dual $653.83 $2.80 $651.03 $4.25 $655.28 $9.38 $664.66
COBRA
4 1 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $9.08 $324.58
5 1 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $18.00 $779.22
Part-Time/Temporary/LOA
6 1 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $5.98 $321.48
7 1 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $10.44 $771.66



NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
PREMIUM RATE STRUCTURE FOR THE 2007-2009 BIENNIUM

Rate Structure A (cont'd) (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
January 1, 2009 - June 30, 2009 (3)+(4)+(5)

(1)-(2) Wellness Total (6)+(7)
 Total Less Total Programs Medicare Monthly Plus NDPERS

BCBSND NDPERS Premium to & Disease Part D Paid to NDPERS Billing
Code Description Bid Retention BCBSND Mgmt Premium BCBSND Retention Rate
Non-Medicare Retiree
21 11 Single $471.09 $2.80 $468.29 $4.25 $472.54 $2.80 $475.34
22 11 Family $942.17 $2.80 $939.37 $4.25 $943.62 $2.80 $946.42
23 11 Family (3+) $1,177.73 $2.80 $1,174.93 $4.25 $1,179.18 $2.80 $1,181.98
COBRA
24 11 Single $471.09 $2.80 $468.29 $4.25 $472.54 $7.97 $480.51
25 11 Family $942.17 $2.80 $939.37 $4.25 $943.62 $17.38 $961.00
26 11 Family (3+) $1,177.73 $2.80 $1,174.93 $4.25 $1,179.18 $22.09 $1,201.27

Medicare Retiree
41 11 1 Medicare only $154.06 $2.80 $151.26 $0.00 $63.70 $214.96 $2.80 $217.76
42 11 2 Medicare only $298.18 $2.80 $295.38 $0.00 $127.40 $422.78 $2.80 $425.58
50 11 3 Medicare only $317.02 $2.80 $314.22 $0.00 $191.10 $505.32 $2.80 $508.12
51 11 4 Medicare only $194.66 $2.80 $191.86 $0.00 $254.80 $446.66 $2.80 $449.46
43 11 1 Medicare+Others $561.74 $2.80 $558.94 $0.00 $63.70 $622.64 $2.80 $625.44
49 11 2 Medicare+Others $439.38 $2.80 $436.58 $0.00 $127.40 $563.98 $2.80 $566.78
55 11 3 Medicare+Others $317.02 $2.80 $314.22 $0.00 $191.10 $505.32 $2.80 $508.12
44 11 Part A Single $424.32 $2.80 $421.52 $0.00 $63.70 $485.22 $2.80 $488.02
COBRA
46 11 1 Medicare only $154.06 $2.80 $151.26 $0.00 $63.70 $214.96 $7.16 $222.12
47 11 2 Medicare only $298.18 $2.80 $295.38 $0.00 $127.40 $422.78 $11.30 $434.08
53 11 3 Medicare only $317.02 $2.80 $314.22 $0.00 $191.10 $505.32 $12.96 $518.28
54 11 4 Medicare only $194.66 $2.80 $191.86 $0.00 $254.80 $446.66 $11.78 $458.44
48 11 1 Medicare+Others $561.74 $2.80 $558.94 $0.00 $63.70 $622.64 $15.30 $637.94
52 11 2 Medicare+Others $439.38 $2.80 $436.58 $0.00 $127.40 $563.98 $14.14 $578.12
56 11 3 Medicare+Others $317.02 $2.80 $314.22 $0.00 $191.10 $505.32 $12.96 $518.28
Medicare Low Income Subsidy
41 13 1 Medicare only (1cr) $154.06 $2.80 $151.26 $0.00 $33.30 $184.56 $2.80 $187.36
61 13 1 Medicare only (.75cr) $154.06 $2.80 $151.26 $0.00 $40.90 $192.16 $2.80 $194.96
71 13 1 Medicare only (.5cr) $154.06 $2.80 $151.26 $0.00 $48.50 $199.76 $2.80 $202.56
81 13 1 Medicare only (.25cr) $154.06 $2.80 $151.26 $0.00 $56.10 $207.36 $2.80 $210.16
42 13 2 Medicare only (2cr) $298.18 $2.80 $295.38 $0.00 $66.60 $361.98 $2.80 $364.78
72 13 2 Medicare only (1cr) $298.18 $2.80 $295.38 $0.00 $97.00 $392.38 $2.80 $395.18
50 13 3 Medicare only (1cr) $317.02 $2.80 $314.22 $0.00 $160.70 $474.92 $2.80 $477.72
51 13 4 Medicare only (1cr) $194.66 $2.80 $191.86 $0.00 $224.40 $416.26 $2.80 $419.06
52 13 4 Medicare only (2cr) $194.66 $2.80 $191.86 $0.00 $194.00 $385.86 $2.80 $388.66
43 13 1 Medicare+Others (1cr) $561.74 $2.80 $558.94 $0.00 $33.30 $592.24 $2.80 $595.04
49 13 2 Medicare+Others (1cr) $439.38 $2.80 $436.58 $0.00 $97.00 $533.58 $2.80 $536.38
55 13 3 Medicare+Others (2cr) $317.02 $2.80 $314.22 $0.00 $130.30 $444.52 $2.80 $447.32

(1) - BCBSND premium rates, per bid.
(2) - Per contract charge retained by NDPERS
(3) - Total premium paid to BCBSND.
(4) - Wellness Programs and Disease Management submitted to BCBSND.
(5) - Medicare Part D Premium submitted to BCBSND.
(6) - Amount of premium NDPERS will send to BCBSND.
(7) - Per contract charge retained by NDPERS.
(8) - Premium amount NDPERS will bill its contract holders.



NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
PREMIUM RATE STRUCTURE FOR THE 2007-2009 BIENNIUM

Rate Structure B (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
First Year (3)+(4)+(5)
July 1, 2007 - December 31, 2007 (1)-(2) Wellness Total (6)+(7)

Total Less Total Programs Medicare Monthly Plus NDPERS
BCBSND NDPERS Premium to & Disease Part D Paid to NDPERS Billing

Code Description Bid Retention BCBSND Mgmt Premium BCBSND Retention Rate
Political Subdivision Rates with Wellness Program
Active EPO/PPO/Basic
1 8 Single $320.11 $2.80 $317.31 $4.25 $321.56 $2.80 $324.36
2 8 Family $776.45 $2.80 $773.65 $4.25 $777.90 $2.80 $780.70
COBRA
4 8 Single $320.11 $2.80 $317.31 $4.25 $321.56 $9.20 $330.76
5 8 Family $776.45 $2.80 $773.65 $4.25 $777.90 $18.33 $796.23

Active EPO/Basic
1 10 Single $297.91 $2.80 $295.11 $4.25 $299.36 $2.80 $302.16
2 10 Family $722.31 $2.80 $719.51 $4.25 $723.76 $2.80 $726.56
COBRA
4 10 Single $297.91 $2.80 $295.11 $4.25 $299.36 $8.76 $308.12
5 10 Family $722.31 $2.80 $719.51 $4.25 $723.76 $17.25 $741.01

Political Subdivision Rates w/o Wellness Program
Active EPO/PPO/Basic
1 7 Single $320.11 $2.80 $317.31 $4.25 $321.56 $6.04 $327.60
2 7 Family $776.45 $2.80 $773.65 $4.25 $777.90 $10.61 $788.51
COBRA
4 7 Single $320.11 $2.80 $317.31 $4.25 $321.56 $9.20 $330.76
5 7 Family $776.45 $2.80 $773.65 $4.25 $777.90 $18.33 $796.23

Active EPO/Basic
1 9 Single $297.91 $2.80 $295.11 $4.25 $299.36 $5.82 $305.18
2 9 Family $722.31 $2.80 $719.51 $4.25 $723.76 $10.07 $733.83
COBRA
4 9 Single $297.91 $2.80 $295.11 $4.25 $299.36 $8.76 $308.12
5 9 Family $722.31 $2.80 $719.51 $4.25 $723.76 $17.25 $741.01

State Contracts with Wellness Program (see Rate Structure 'A')
Active
1-3 2 S/F/Dual $653.83 $2.80 $651.03 $4.25 $655.28 $2.80 $658.08
COBRA
4 2 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $9.08 $324.58
5 2 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $18.00 $779.22
Part-Time/Temporary/LOA
6 2 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $2.80 $318.30
7 2 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $2.80 $764.02

State Contracts w/o Wellness Program (see Rate Structure 'A')
Active
1-3 1 S/F/Dual $653.83 $2.80 $651.03 $4.25 $655.28 $9.38 $664.66
COBRA
4 1 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $9.08 $324.58
5 1 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $18.00 $779.22
Part-Time/Temporary/LOA
6 1 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $5.98 $321.48
7 1 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $10.44 $771.66



NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
PREMIUM RATE STRUCTURE FOR THE 2007-2009 BIENNIUM

Rate Structure B (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
First Year (cont'd) (3)+(4)+(5)
July 1, 2007 - December 31, 2007 (1)-(2) Wellness Total (6)+(7)

Total Less Total Programs Medicare Monthly Plus NDPERS
BCBSND NDPERS Premium to & Disease Part D Paid to NDPERS Billing

Code Description Bid Retention BCBSND Mgmt Premium BCBSND Retention Rate
Non-Medicare Retiree (see Rate Structure 'A')
21 12 Single $471.09 $2.80 $468.29 $4.25 $472.54 $2.80 $475.34
22 12 Family $942.17 $2.80 $939.37 $4.25 $943.62 $2.80 $946.42
23 12 Family (3+) $1,177.73 $2.80 $1,174.93 $4.25 $1,179.18 $2.80 $1,181.98
COBRA
24 12 Single $471.09 $2.80 $468.29 $4.25 $472.54 $7.97 $480.51
25 12 Family $942.17 $2.80 $939.37 $4.25 $943.62 $17.38 $961.00
26 12 Family (3+) $1,177.73 $2.80 $1,174.93 $4.25 $1,179.18 $22.09 $1,201.27

Medicare Retiree
41 12 1 Medicare only $147.08 $2.80 $144.28 $0.00 $60.14 $204.42 $2.80 $207.22
42 12 2 Medicare only $284.66 $2.80 $281.86 $0.00 $120.28 $402.14 $2.80 $404.94
50 12 3 Medicare only $302.66 $2.80 $299.86 $0.00 $180.42 $480.28 $2.80 $483.08
51 12 4 Medicare only $185.84 $2.80 $183.04 $0.00 $240.56 $423.60 $2.80 $426.40
43 12 1 Medicare+Others $536.28 $2.80 $533.48 $0.00 $60.14 $593.62 $2.80 $596.42
49 12 2 Medicare+Others $419.46 $2.80 $416.66 $0.00 $120.28 $536.94 $2.80 $539.74
55 12 3 Medicare+Others $302.66 $2.80 $299.86 $0.00 $180.42 $480.28 $2.80 $483.08
COBRA
46 12 1 Medicare only $147.08 $2.80 $144.28 $0.00 $60.14 $204.42 $6.95 $211.37
47 12 2 Medicare only $284.66 $2.80 $281.86 $0.00 $120.28 $402.14 $10.91 $413.05
53 12 3 Medicare only $302.66 $2.80 $299.86 $0.00 $180.42 $480.28 $12.47 $492.75
54 12 4 Medicare only $185.84 $2.80 $183.04 $0.00 $240.56 $423.60 $11.33 $434.93
48 12 1 Medicare+Others $536.28 $2.80 $533.48 $0.00 $60.14 $593.62 $14.73 $608.35
52 12 2 Medicare+Others $419.46 $2.80 $416.66 $0.00 $120.28 $536.94 $13.60 $550.54
56 12 3 Medicare+Others $302.66 $2.80 $299.86 $0.00 $180.42 $480.28 $12.47 $492.75

(1) - BCBSND premium rates, per bid.
(2) - Per contract charge retained by NDPERS
(3) - Total premium paid to BCBSND.
(4) - Wellness Programs and Disease Management submitted to BCBSND.
(5) - Medicare Part D Premium submitted to BCBSND.
(6) - Amount of premium NDPERS will send to BCBSND.
(7) - Per contract charge retained by NDPERS.
(8) - Premium amount NDPERS will bill its contract holders.



NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
PREMIUM RATE STRUCTURE FOR THE 2007-2009 BIENNIUM

Rate Structure B (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
First Year (3)+(4)+(5)
January 1, 2008 - June 30, 2008 (1)-(2) Wellness Total (6)+(7)

Total Less Total Programs Medicare Monthly Plus NDPERS
BCBSND NDPERS Premium to & Disease Part D Paid to NDPERS Billing

Code Description Bid Retention BCBSND Mgmt Premium BCBSND Retention Rate
Political Subdivision Rates with Wellness Program
Active EPO/PPO/Basic
1 8 Single $320.11 $2.80 $317.31 $4.25 $321.56 $2.80 $324.36
2 8 Family $776.45 $2.80 $773.65 $4.25 $777.90 $2.80 $780.70
COBRA
4 8 Single $320.11 $2.80 $317.31 $4.25 $321.56 $9.20 $330.76
5 8 Family $776.45 $2.80 $773.65 $4.25 $777.90 $18.33 $796.23

Active EPO/Basic
1 10 Single $297.91 $2.80 $295.11 $4.25 $299.36 $2.80 $302.16
2 10 Family $722.31 $2.80 $719.51 $4.25 $723.76 $2.80 $726.56
COBRA
4 10 Single $297.91 $2.80 $295.11 $4.25 $299.36 $8.76 $308.12
5 10 Family $722.31 $2.80 $719.51 $4.25 $723.76 $17.25 $741.01

Political Subdivision Rates w/o Wellness Program
Active EPO/PPO/Basic
1 7 Single $320.11 $2.80 $317.31 $4.25 $321.56 $6.04 $327.60
2 7 Family $776.45 $2.80 $773.65 $4.25 $777.90 $10.61 $788.51
COBRA
4 7 Single $320.11 $2.80 $317.31 $4.25 $321.56 $9.20 $330.76
5 7 Family $776.45 $2.80 $773.65 $4.25 $777.90 $18.33 $796.23

Active EPO/Basic
1 9 Single $297.91 $2.80 $295.11 $4.25 $299.36 $5.82 $305.18
2 9 Family $722.31 $2.80 $719.51 $4.25 $723.76 $10.07 $733.83
COBRA
4 9 Single $297.91 $2.80 $295.11 $4.25 $299.36 $8.76 $308.12
5 9 Family $722.31 $2.80 $719.51 $4.25 $723.76 $17.25 $741.01

State Contracts with Wellness Program (see Rate Structure 'A')
Active
1-3 2 S/F/Dual $653.83 $2.80 $651.03 $4.25 $655.28 $2.80 $658.08
COBRA
4 2 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $9.08 $324.58
5 2 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $18.00 $779.22
Part-Time/Temporary/LOA
6 2 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $2.80 $318.30
7 2 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $2.80 $764.02

State Contracts w/o Wellness Program (see Rate Structure 'A')
Active
1-3 1 S/F/Dual $653.83 $2.80 $651.03 $4.25 $655.28 $9.38 $664.66
COBRA
4 1 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $9.08 $324.58
5 1 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $18.00 $779.22
Part-Time/Temporary/LOA
6 1 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $5.98 $321.48
7 1 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $10.44 $771.66



NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
PREMIUM RATE STRUCTURE FOR THE 2007-2009 BIENNIUM

Rate Structure B (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
First Year (cont'd) (3)+(4)+(5)
January 1, 2008 - June 30, 2008 (1)-(2) Wellness Total (6)+(7)

Total Less Total Programs Medicare Monthly Plus NDPERS
BCBSND NDPERS Premium to & Disease Part D Paid to NDPERS Billing

Code Description Bid Retention BCBSND Mgmt Premium BCBSND Retention Rate
Non-Medicare Retiree (see Rate Structure 'A')
21 12 Single $471.09 $2.80 $468.29 $4.25 $472.54 $2.80 $475.34
22 12 Family $942.17 $2.80 $939.37 $4.25 $943.62 $2.80 $946.42
23 12 Family (3+) $1,177.73 $2.80 $1,174.93 $4.25 $1,179.18 $2.80 $1,181.98
COBRA
24 12 Single $471.09 $2.80 $468.29 $4.25 $472.54 $7.97 $480.51
25 12 Family $942.17 $2.80 $939.37 $4.25 $943.62 $17.38 $961.00
26 12 Family (3+) $1,177.73 $2.80 $1,174.93 $4.25 $1,179.18 $22.09 $1,201.27

Medicare Retiree
41 12 1 Medicare only $147.08 $2.80 $144.28 $0.00 $56.40 $200.68 $2.80 $203.48
42 12 2 Medicare only $284.66 $2.80 $281.86 $0.00 $112.80 $394.66 $2.80 $397.46
50 12 3 Medicare only $302.66 $2.80 $299.86 $0.00 $169.20 $469.06 $2.80 $471.86
51 12 4 Medicare only $185.84 $2.80 $183.04 $0.00 $225.60 $408.64 $2.80 $411.44
43 12 1 Medicare+Others $536.28 $2.80 $533.48 $0.00 $56.40 $589.88 $2.80 $592.68
49 12 2 Medicare+Others $419.46 $2.80 $416.66 $0.00 $112.80 $529.46 $2.80 $532.26
55 12 3 Medicare+Others $302.66 $2.80 $299.86 $0.00 $169.20 $469.06 $2.80 $471.86
COBRA
46 12 1 Medicare only $147.08 $2.80 $144.28 $0.00 $56.40 $200.68 $6.88 $207.56
47 12 2 Medicare only $284.66 $2.80 $281.86 $0.00 $112.80 $394.66 $10.76 $405.42
53 12 3 Medicare only $302.66 $2.80 $299.86 $0.00 $169.20 $469.06 $12.24 $481.30
54 12 4 Medicare only $185.84 $2.80 $183.04 $0.00 $225.60 $408.64 $11.04 $419.68
48 12 1 Medicare+Others $536.28 $2.80 $533.48 $0.00 $56.40 $589.88 $14.66 $604.54
52 12 2 Medicare+Others $419.46 $2.80 $416.66 $0.00 $112.80 $529.46 $13.46 $542.92
56 12 3 Medicare+Others $302.66 $2.80 $299.86 $0.00 $169.20 $469.06 $12.24 $481.30

(1) - BCBSND premium rates, per bid.
(2) - Per contract charge retained by NDPERS
(3) - Total premium paid to BCBSND.
(4) - Wellness Programs and Disease Management submitted to BCBSND.
(5) - Medicare Part D Premium submitted to BCBSND.
(6) - Amount of premium NDPERS will send to BCBSND.
(7) - Per contract charge retained by NDPERS.
(8) - Premium amount NDPERS will bill its contract holders.



NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
PREMIUM RATE STRUCTURE FOR THE 2007-2009 BIENNIUM

Rate Structure B (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Second Year (3)+(4)+(5)
July 1, 2008 - December 31, 2008 (1)-(2) Wellness Total (6)+(7)

Total Less Total Programs Medicare Monthly Plus NDPERS
BCBSND NDPERS Premium to & Disease Part D Paid to NDPERS Billing

Code Description Bid Retention BCBSND Mgmt Premium BCBSND Retention Rate
Political Subdivision Rates with Wellness Program
Active EPO/PPO/Basic
1 8 Single $350.51 $2.80 $347.71 $4.25 $351.96 $2.80 $354.76
2 8 Family $850.21 $2.80 $847.41 $4.25 $851.66 $2.80 $854.46
COBRA
4 8 Single $350.51 $2.80 $347.71 $4.25 $351.96 $9.81 $361.77
5 8 Family $850.21 $2.80 $847.41 $4.25 $851.66 $19.80 $871.46

Active EPO/Basic
1 10 Single $326.19 $2.80 $323.39 $4.25 $327.64 $2.80 $330.44
2 10 Family $790.91 $2.80 $788.11 $4.25 $792.36 $2.80 $795.16
COBRA
4 10 Single $326.19 $2.80 $323.39 $4.25 $327.64 $9.32 $336.96
5 10 Family $790.91 $2.80 $788.11 $4.25 $792.36 $18.62 $810.98

Political Subdivision Rates w/o Wellness Program
Active EPO/PPO/Basic
1 7 Single $350.51 $2.80 $347.71 $4.25 $351.96 $6.35 $358.31
2 7 Family $850.21 $2.80 $847.41 $4.25 $851.66 $11.34 $863.00
COBRA
4 7 Single $350.51 $2.80 $347.71 $4.25 $351.96 $9.81 $361.77
5 7 Family $850.21 $2.80 $847.41 $4.25 $851.66 $19.80 $871.46

Active EPO/Basic
1 9 Single $326.19 $2.80 $323.39 $4.25 $327.64 $6.10 $333.74
2 9 Family $790.91 $2.80 $788.11 $4.25 $792.36 $10.75 $803.11
COBRA
4 9 Single $326.19 $2.80 $323.39 $4.25 $327.64 $9.32 $336.96
5 9 Family $790.91 $2.80 $788.11 $4.25 $792.36 $18.62 $810.98

State Contracts with Wellness Program (see Rate Structure 'A')
Active
1-3 2 S/F/Dual $653.83 $2.80 $651.03 $4.25 $655.28 $2.80 $658.08
COBRA
4 2 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $9.08 $324.58
5 2 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $18.00 $779.22
Part-Time/Temporary/LOA
6 2 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $2.80 $318.30
7 2 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $2.80 $764.02

State Contracts w/o Wellness Program (see Rate Structure 'A')
Active
1-3 1 S/F/Dual $653.83 $2.80 $651.03 $4.25 $655.28 $9.38 $664.66
COBRA
4 1 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $9.08 $324.58
5 1 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $18.00 $779.22
Part-Time/Temporary/LOA
6 1 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $5.98 $321.48
7 1 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $10.44 $771.66



NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
PREMIUM RATE STRUCTURE FOR THE 2007-2009 BIENNIUM

Rate Structure B (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Second Year (cont'd) (3)+(4)+(5)
July 1, 2008 - December 31, 2008 (1)-(2) Wellness Total (6)+(7)

Total Less Total Programs Medicare Monthly Plus NDPERS
BCBSND NDPERS Premium to & Disease Part D Paid to NDPERS Billing

Code Description Bid Retention BCBSND Mgmt Premium BCBSND Retention Rate
Non-Medicare Retiree (see Rate Structure 'A')
21 12 Single $471.09 $2.80 $468.29 $4.25 $472.54 $2.80 $475.34
22 12 Family $942.17 $2.80 $939.37 $4.25 $943.62 $2.80 $946.42
23 12 Family (3+) $1,177.73 $2.80 $1,174.93 $4.25 $1,179.18 $2.80 $1,181.98
COBRA
24 12 Single $471.09 $2.80 $468.29 $4.25 $472.54 $7.97 $480.51
25 12 Family $942.17 $2.80 $939.37 $4.25 $943.62 $17.38 $961.00
26 12 Family (3+) $1,177.73 $2.80 $1,174.93 $4.25 $1,179.18 $22.09 $1,201.27

Medicare Retiree
41 12 1 Medicare only $161.04 $2.80 $158.24 $0.00 $56.40 $214.64 $2.80 $217.44
42 12 2 Medicare only $311.70 $2.80 $308.90 $0.00 $112.80 $421.70 $2.80 $424.50
50 12 3 Medicare only $331.38 $2.80 $328.58 $0.00 $169.20 $497.78 $2.80 $500.58
51 12 4 Medicare only $203.48 $2.80 $200.68 $0.00 $225.60 $426.28 $2.80 $429.08
43 12 1 Medicare+Others $587.20 $2.80 $584.40 $0.00 $56.40 $640.80 $2.80 $643.60
49 12 2 Medicare+Others $459.30 $2.80 $456.50 $0.00 $112.80 $569.30 $2.80 $572.10
55 12 3 Medicare+Others $331.38 $2.80 $328.58 $0.00 $169.20 $497.78 $2.80 $500.58
COBRA
46 12 1 Medicare only $161.04 $2.80 $158.24 $0.00 $56.40 $214.64 $7.14 $221.78
47 12 2 Medicare only $311.70 $2.80 $308.90 $0.00 $112.80 $421.70 $11.28 $432.98
53 12 3 Medicare only $331.38 $2.80 $328.58 $0.00 $169.20 $497.78 $12.80 $510.58
54 12 4 Medicare only $203.48 $2.80 $200.68 $0.00 $225.60 $426.28 $11.38 $437.66
48 12 1 Medicare+Others $587.20 $2.80 $584.40 $0.00 $56.40 $640.80 $15.66 $656.46
52 12 2 Medicare+Others $459.30 $2.80 $456.50 $0.00 $112.80 $569.30 $14.24 $583.54
56 12 3 Medicare+Others $331.38 $2.80 $328.58 $0.00 $169.20 $497.78 $12.80 $510.58

(1) - BCBSND premium rates, per bid.
(2) - Per contract charge retained by NDPERS
(3) - Total premium paid to BCBSND.
(4) - Wellness Programs and Disease Management submitted to BCBSND.
(5) - Medicare Part D Premium submitted to BCBSND.
(6) - Amount of premium NDPERS will send to BCBSND.
(7) - Per contract charge retained by NDPERS.
(8) - Premium amount NDPERS will bill its contract holders.



NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
PREMIUM RATE STRUCTURE FOR THE 2007-2009 BIENNIUM

Rate Structure B (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Second Year (3)+(4)+(5)
January 1, 2009 - June 30, 2009 (1)-(2) Wellness Total (6)+(7)

Total Less Total Programs Medicare Monthly Plus NDPERS
BCBSND NDPERS Premium to & Disease Part D Paid to NDPERS Billing

Code Description Bid Retention BCBSND Mgmt Premium BCBSND Retention Rate
Political Subdivision Rates with Wellness Program
Active EPO/PPO/Basic
1 8 Single $350.51 $2.80 $347.71 $4.25 $351.96 $2.80 $354.76
2 8 Family $850.21 $2.80 $847.41 $4.25 $851.66 $2.80 $854.46
COBRA
4 8 Single $350.51 $2.80 $347.71 $4.25 $351.96 $9.81 $361.77
5 8 Family $850.21 $2.80 $847.41 $4.25 $851.66 $19.80 $871.46

Active EPO/Basic
1 10 Single $326.19 $2.80 $323.39 $4.25 $327.64 $2.80 $330.44
2 10 Family $790.91 $2.80 $788.11 $4.25 $792.36 $2.80 $795.16
COBRA
4 10 Single $326.19 $2.80 $323.39 $4.25 $327.64 $9.32 $336.96
5 10 Family $790.91 $2.80 $788.11 $4.25 $792.36 $18.62 $810.98

Political Subdivision Rates w/o Wellness Program
Active EPO/PPO/Basic
1 7 Single $350.51 $2.80 $347.71 $4.25 $351.96 $6.35 $358.31
2 7 Family $850.21 $2.80 $847.41 $4.25 $851.66 $11.34 $863.00
COBRA
4 7 Single $350.51 $2.80 $347.71 $4.25 $351.96 $9.81 $361.77
5 7 Family $850.21 $2.80 $847.41 $4.25 $851.66 $19.80 $871.46

Active EPO/Basic
1 9 Single $326.19 $2.80 $323.39 $4.25 $327.64 $6.10 $333.74
2 9 Family $790.91 $2.80 $788.11 $4.25 $792.36 $10.75 $803.11
COBRA
4 9 Single $326.19 $2.80 $323.39 $4.25 $327.64 $9.32 $336.96
5 9 Family $790.91 $2.80 $788.11 $4.25 $792.36 $18.62 $810.98

State Contracts with Wellness Program (see Rate Structure 'A')
Active
1-3 2 S/F/Dual $653.83 $2.80 $651.03 $4.25 $655.28 $2.80 $658.08
COBRA
4 2 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $9.08 $324.58
5 2 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $18.00 $779.22
Part-Time/Temporary/LOA
6 2 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $2.80 $318.30
7 2 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $2.80 $764.02

State Contracts w/o Wellness Program (see Rate Structure 'A')
Active
1-3 1 S/F/Dual $653.83 $2.80 $651.03 $4.25 $655.28 $9.38 $664.66
COBRA
4 1 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $9.08 $324.58
5 1 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $18.00 $779.22
Part-Time/Temporary/LOA
6 1 Single $314.05 $2.80 $311.25 $4.25 $315.50 $5.98 $321.48
7 1 Family $759.77 $2.80 $756.97 $4.25 $761.22 $10.44 $771.66



NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM
PREMIUM RATE STRUCTURE FOR THE 2007-2009 BIENNIUM

Rate Structure B (1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Second Year (cont'd) (3)+(4)+(5)
January 1, 2009 - June 30, 2009 (1)-(2) Wellness Total (6)+(7)

Total Less Total Programs Medicare Monthly Plus NDPERS
BCBSND NDPERS Premium to & Disease Part D Paid to NDPERS Billing

Code Description Bid Retention BCBSND Mgmt Premium BCBSND Retention Rate
Non-Medicare Retiree (see Rate Structure 'A')
21 12 Single $471.09 $2.80 $468.29 $4.25 $472.54 $2.80 $475.34
22 12 Family $942.17 $2.80 $939.37 $4.25 $943.62 $2.80 $946.42
23 12 Family (3+) $1,177.73 $2.80 $1,174.93 $4.25 $1,179.18 $2.80 $1,181.98
COBRA
24 12 Single $471.09 $2.80 $468.29 $4.25 $472.54 $7.97 $480.51
25 12 Family $942.17 $2.80 $939.37 $4.25 $943.62 $17.38 $961.00
26 12 Family (3+) $1,177.73 $2.80 $1,174.93 $4.25 $1,179.18 $22.09 $1,201.27

Medicare Retiree
41 12 1 Medicare only $161.04 $2.80 $158.24 $0.00 $63.70 $221.94 $2.80 $224.74
42 12 2 Medicare only $311.70 $2.80 $308.90 $0.00 $127.40 $436.30 $2.80 $439.10
50 12 3 Medicare only $331.38 $2.80 $328.58 $0.00 $191.10 $519.68 $2.80 $522.48
51 12 4 Medicare only $203.48 $2.80 $200.68 $0.00 $254.80 $455.48 $2.80 $458.28
43 12 1 Medicare+Others $587.20 $2.80 $584.40 $0.00 $63.70 $648.10 $2.80 $650.90
49 12 2 Medicare+Others $459.30 $2.80 $456.50 $0.00 $127.40 $583.90 $2.80 $586.70
55 12 3 Medicare+Others $331.38 $2.80 $328.58 $0.00 $191.10 $519.68 $2.80 $522.48
COBRA
46 12 1 Medicare only $161.04 $2.80 $158.24 $0.00 $63.70 $221.94 $7.28 $229.22
47 12 2 Medicare only $311.70 $2.80 $308.90 $0.00 $127.40 $436.30 $11.58 $447.88
53 12 3 Medicare only $331.38 $2.80 $328.58 $0.00 $191.10 $519.68 $13.24 $532.92
54 12 4 Medicare only $203.48 $2.80 $200.68 $0.00 $254.80 $455.48 $11.96 $467.44
48 12 1 Medicare+Others $587.20 $2.80 $584.40 $0.00 $63.70 $648.10 $15.82 $663.92
52 12 2 Medicare+Others $459.30 $2.80 $456.50 $0.00 $127.40 $583.90 $14.52 $598.42
56 12 3 Medicare+Others $331.38 $2.80 $328.58 $0.00 $191.10 $519.68 $13.24 $532.92

(1) - BCBSND premium rates, per bid.
(2) - Per contract charge retained by NDPERS
(3) - Total premium paid to BCBSND.
(4) - Wellness Programs and Disease Management submitted to BCBSND.
(5) - Medicare Part D Premium submitted to BCBSND.
(6) - Amount of premium NDPERS will send to BCBSND.
(7) - Per contract charge retained by NDPERS.
(8) - Premium amount NDPERS will bill its contract holders.

















































 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board     
 
FROM:   Kathy & Sparb      
 
DATE:   December 8, 2008   
 
SUBJECT:  American United Life (AUL) Contract – Deferred Comp Plan 
 
 
In March the Board was notified that a new plan provider had met the requirements to 
provide services under the State’s deferred compensation plan.  American United Life in 
conjunction with OneAmerica Financial Partners, Inc. had submitted a signed Provider 
Administrative Agreement along with the 50 minimum required applications. In the process 
of finalizing the details to add this provider, AUL sent us its contract for approval. The 
contract was referred to our legal counsel for review.  It was determined that there were 
several articles in the AUL contract that contradicted the Provider Administrative Agreement 
on various administrative details.  Due to these discrepancies, PERS was unable to sign the 
agreement.  Over the next several months, PERS and the AUL legal representatives made  
several attempts to reconcile the differences.  To resolve the issues, PERS revised its 
Provider Agreement by adding subsection “T” under Section II which specifies that the 
Board will not take on any additional responsibilities that are not provided for in our 
agreement.  A copy of the amended agreement is included for your information.   
 
AUL has reviewed and agreed to sign the amended agreement.  Staff is requesting the 
Boards’ approval to execute the revised Provider Agreement.  Subject to the approval, staff 
will work out the details to add this provider to our database and payroll systems.  The 
effective date of participation is expected to be March 1, 2009.   
 
 
Board Action Requested 
 
Approve or reject the revised Provider Administrative Agreement for AUL. 
 
 
 
  



 

1 

 PROVIDER ADMINISTRATIVE AGREEMENT 
IN THE 

NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLYOEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 
DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

 
 
This Provider Administrative Agreement (Agreement) is made and entered into this 
__________day of  ___________________ 200___, by and between the North Dakota Public 
Employees Retirement System Board, administrator of the North Dakota Deferred Compensation 
Plan, hereinafter referred to as the "Retirement Board", and,       
  hereinafter referred to as the "Provider". 
 
 
I. Purpose and Scope of the Deferred Compensation Program 
 
The purpose of this Agreement is to document specific areas of responsibility with respect to the 
administration of the North Dakota Deferred Compensation Plan.  No later than January l, 1999, all 
participant assets must be held in an insurance annuity contract or custodial account for the 
exclusive benefit of the participant and the participant’s beneficiaries as required by section 457 of 
the Internal Revenue Code.  No deferred compensation program assets are subject to execution, 
garnishment, attachment, the operation of bankruptcy or insolvency laws, or other process of law 
whatsoever.  Neither the participant nor the participant’s beneficiary has the right to commute, sell, 
assign, transfer, or otherwise convey the right to receive payments under the deferred 
compensation program.  The Provider is authorized to make investments as specified by the 
participant.  The participant is responsible for any loss which may result from investment of the 
deferred compensation. 
 
 
II. Providers’ Area of Responsibility 
 
 A. All sales representatives of the Provider who are authorized to solicit employees 

shall be fully qualified to explain the deferred compensation program as found 
under Section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code and shall be licensed by the North 
Dakota State Securities Commissioner for the sale of registered securities or the 
North Dakota State Insurance Commissioner for the sale of insurance products, or 
both, if applicable.  All new sales representatives must complete an initial review of 
the Deferred Compensation Program and be certified by the Provider before the 
sales representative may enroll or recruit eligible participants.  All sales 
representatives must complete an initial orientation of the deferred compensation 
program within one year of beginning service and all sales representatives must 
complete ongoing training orientation every two years as prescribed by the 
Retirement Board.  This orientation may be obtained either through a program to 
be developed by the Retirement Board or through a program to be developed by 
the Provider and approved by the Retirement Board.  Any sales representative who 
does not complete the required training under this provision or fails to comply with 
other provisions of this agreement may not enroll new participants. 

 
 B. The Provider must have a minimum of fifty participants enrolled before payroll 



 

2 

deductions may begin.  However, if the Provider was providing deferred 
compensation services to NDPERS members under an existing provider 
agreement at the time the Provider signed this provider agreement, the fifty-
participant requirement does not apply. 

 C. The Provider shall deliver to the Retirement Board at least semi-annual reports 
indicating the total assets allocated to the Provider for each participant.  The report 
must include all participants from all payroll sources (Central Payroll, Bank of North 
Dakota, Political Subdivisions, etc.).  The reports shall include the following 
information: 

 
1. Alphabetical List of Participants. 
2. Social Security Number. 
3. Provider contract number. 
4. Type of account. 
5. Beginning account balance forwarded from previous reporting period. 
6. Contributions during the reporting period. 
7. Transfers and rollovers from other eligible plans during the reporting period. 
8. Investment earnings or losses during the reporting period. 
9. Withdrawals and charges made against the account during the  
             reporting period. 
10. Transfers and direct rollovers to other eligible plans during the reporting 

period. 
11. Balance of the account at the end of the reporting period. 
12. Other information required by the Retirement Board. 

   
  The Provider must include in its report all active accounts, inactive accounts, and 

accounts in payout status, with the exception of accounts which have been 
annuitized.  The report columns must be totaled.  The report must be submitted 
within thirty days of the end of each reporting period.  Failure to submit a report 
within thirty days of the end of a reporting period will result in the Retirement Board 
sending the Provider a letter advising the Provider that, if the Retirement Board 
does not receive the report within thirty days of the date of the letter, the Retirement 
Board will automatically suspend the Provider’s eligibility to enroll new members 
until the first day of the month following the date the Retirement Board receives the 
report.  The Provider’s failure to submit a report within ninety days after the end of 
a reporting period will be considered a material breach of this agreement.  At that 
point, the Retirement Board will inform all members who are using the Provider’s 
services that the Provider is in material breach of the agreement, that the 
Retirement Board is commencing termination of the agreement, as well as 
Provider’s eligibility to supply services under the Deferred Compensation program, 
and that the members may no longer contribute to the Deferred Compensation 
program using the Provider.  The Retirement Board will then terminate the 
agreement with the Provider as provided in subsection C of section IV of this 
agreement. 

 
  Effective January 1, 2004, the reports required to be submitted under this 

paragraph C must be submitted in one of the approved electronic formats noted 
below within 30 days of the end of each calendar quarter.  The quarterly electronic 



 

3 

reports will be in lieu of the semi-annual reports.  The Provider is encouraged to 
begin using the electronic format earlier than January 2004.   If the Provider is 
unable to submit the reports in electronic format, a penalty of $500 will be assessed 
for each reporting period that paper reports are received.  Approved electronic 
formats include either Excel spreadsheets or an ASCII file using the record layout 
provided by the Retirement Board.  If the Provider is unable to produce the file in 
the specified layout, the Provider may request approval from the Retirement Board 
to use an alternate layout. 

 
D. The Provider shall solicit and maintain beneficiary designations from each 

Participant.  
 
E. The Provider shall provide to all Participants at their home addresses, no less than 

quarterly, account statements detailing each Participant's account activity and 
account balance, with the exception of accounts that have been annuitized.  
However, if the Provider provides inactive participants with a toll-free number those 
participants may utilize to review their accounts, the Provider need only provide 
inactive participants with semi-annual account statements. 

 
F. No benefit payments will begin until the Provider receives the written 

documentation from the Retirement Board under Section III, paragraph G 
confirming that the plan participant has severed employment or is otherwise eligible 
for distribution of benefits from the Plan.  Once such information has been given, 
the Provider will make benefit payments directly to the participant. 

 
G. The Provider shall ensure that distributions of a participant’s benefits under the 

Plan for each separate account of the participant held by the Provider satisfy the 
minimum and required distributions of federal Internal Revenue Code Section 
457(d)(2) and related provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a)(9).  

 
H. The Provider shall withhold federal and state taxes from the benefit payments and 

file the required reports of said withholdings with the appropriate federal and state 
agencies in accordance with applicable state and federal law, including the 
mandatory 20% withholding requirements as such apply to Section 457 plans 
under federal Internal Revenue Code Section 457(d)(1)(C) and any related 
regulations.    

 
I. The Provider shall comply with and administer the direct rollover requirements as 

such apply to Section 457 plans under federal Internal Revenue Code Section 
457(d)(1)(C) and any related regulations and accept eligible rollover distributions 
from other eligible plans as may be permitted under Plan and federal Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457(e)(16).  The Provider shall comply with and administer 
the reporting requirements of federal IRC Section 457(e)(16)(C).  The Provider may 
require such documentation from the distributing plan as it deems necessary to 
administer the rollover in accordance with Code Section 402 and shall confirm that 
the distributing plan is an eligible retirement plan within the meaning set forth in 
Code Section 402(c)(8)(B). The Provider shall separately account for all eligible 
rollover distributions from other eligible retirement plans that the Plan accepts, 



 

4 

including separate accounting for rollovers from an eligible deferred compensation 
plan described in Code Section 457(b) that is maintained by a governmental entity 
described in Code Section 457(e)(1)(A) and separate accounting for rollovers from 
all other types of eligible retirement plans. 

 
J. The Provider shall provide the written explanation required by federal Internal 

Revenue Code Section 402(f) to participants and beneficiaries receiving 
distributions from the Plan.  The Provider shall ensure that the written explanation 
required under this paragraph J. is provided within the time established under 
applicable federal regulations.  The Provider must accept an application for benefits 
received more than 60 days before the requested benefit starting date.  The 
Provider may accept an application for benefits received between 60 days and 30 
days before the requested benefit starting date.  The Provider shall not accept an 
application for benefits received less than 30 days before the requested benefit 
starting date unless the Provider has received a written waiver of the notice timing 
requirements established under Code section 402(f) and applicable federal 
regulations. 

 
K. The Provider shall deliver the appropriate tax reporting form as required under the 

IRC to all annuitants, separated employees and beneficiaries receiving distributions 
or other appropriate forms as required by federal and state law. 

 
L. The Provider shall allow the plan participant to "direct transfer" the participant's 

account to another provider and to a public sector defined benefit plan eligible to 
receive such transfers as permitted under the Plan pursuant to federal Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457(e)(17) after first receiving written consent from the 
Retirement Board or the Retirement Board's designated representative.  All 
Requests for Transfer must be effected within thirty days after the Request for 
Transfer is signed by the Retirement Board and mailed to the Provider Contact 
Person or the Provider Contact Person’s designee, or within such earlier time as 
prescribed by the National Association of Securities Dealers (NASD) Rules of Fair 
Practice or 15 U.S.C. § 80a-22(e).  The Provider’s failure to effect a transfer within 
the time prescribed by the NASD rules or 15 U.S.C. § 80a-22(e) will result in the 
Retirement Board reporting that violation to the applicable regulatory agency.  The 
Provider’s failure to effect a transfer within thirty days after the Request for Transfer 
is signed by the Retirement Board will require the Provider to pay to the Retirement 
Board liquidated damages of $50.00 or .l% of the participant’s transferable account 
balance, whichever is greater, for each day that passes until the transfer is 
accomplished.  The Provider must also provide to the Retirement Board written 
confirmation within ten days that the transfer was accomplished.  The confirmation 
must include the date of the transfer, the dollar amount of the transfer, and the 
entity to which you sent the funds.   Provider and Retirement Board agree that the 
amount of damages in the event of a failure to timely effect a transfer is currently 
difficult to estimate, that the amount of liquidated damages has been reviewed, and 
that the stated amount is reasonable in light of the additional expense to the 
Retirement Board in the event of a breach and is not disproportionate to the 
damages reasonably to be anticipated in the event of a breach.  Payment of 
liquidated damages to the Retirement Board shall not relieve the Provider of any 



 

5 

liability to the participant for the Provider's failure to effect a transfer as required in 
this paragraph. 

 
 M. The Provider shall provide to the employee a list of all investment options offered 

by the provider under the program.  A list of the options must also be attached to 
this agreement and updated whenever a new investment product is offered or 
whenever an existing investment option is discontinued. 

 
 N. The Provider must report annually such information as the Board may require 

related to the Provider's investment products. In connection with this report, the 
Provider must also provide a list of fees and distribution options in a format as 
specified by the Retirement Board. 

 
 O. The Provider understands and agrees that the maintenance of the North Dakota 

Deferred Compensation Program as an eligible program under section 457 of the 
Internal Revenue Code is of great importance, and that all of the Provider’s 
functions are subject to a high standard of conduct in order to maintain the 
program’s eligible status.  The Provider agrees to indemnify and save and hold 
harmless the Retirement Board for any loss, damage, claim, or expense arising in 
connection with any actions taken or omitted by the Provider, specifically including, 
but not limited to, actions or omissions by the Provider that adversely affect the 
program’s eligible status. 

 
 P. The Provider agrees to abide by the Plan and the Rules adopted and amended 

from time to time by the Retirement Board for the administration of the Plan.  Notice 
of the amendment of the Plan or Rules will be provided as required by North 
Dakota law.  Additionally, the Provider shall comply in a timely manner with all 
reasonable direction that the Retirement Board may provide concerning the 
administration of the deferred compensation program, including any procedures 
established by the Retirement Board for processing contributions and distributions. 

 
 Q. The Provider shall assume the risk associated with any distribution of participant 

assets not permitted under the plan or federal law. The Provider making an 
impermissible distribution must take appropriate corrective action including, but not 
limited to, restoring the funds to the participant's account, and holding the 
participant harmless for the unauthorized distribution.  

 
 R. The Provider shall fully inform the participant of all standardized distribution options 

available from the Provider at the time of enrollment and prior to the participant 
electing a distribution option. 

 
 S. The Provider must designate a Provider Contact Person who will assume, on 

behalf of the Provider, all administrative responsibilities associated with this 
agreement, including serving as liaison between the Retirement Board and the 
Provider’s sales representatives, ensuring that all reports are correctly and timely 
filed, and serving as the Provider’s reference person to handle all dispute 
resolutions.  The Provider Contact Person must be a senior level manager with 
experience in handling large accounts.  The Provider Contact Person or successor 



 

6 

must also serve, on behalf of the Provider, as the Retirement Board’s “Employer 
Appointment of Agent” as set forth under section 3504 of the Internal Revenue 
Code.  The Provider Contact Person, as the Retirement Board’s appointed agent, 
must ensure that a letter request and Form 2678 is sent to the Director of the 
Internal Revenue Service Center pursuant to Form 2678 and that a copy of the 
request letter and form is also sent to the Retirement Board. 

  
 T. The Provider hereby acknowledges that to the extent that any other agreements, 

documents or contracts between the parties (regardless of timing of execution of 
such agreements, documents or contracts) conflict with any portion of this 
Agreement, this Agreement will control.  Any future agreements that are intended to 
modify this Agreement must specifically make reference to this provision.  The 
Provider hereby acknowledges that the Retirement Board does not agree to take 
on any additional responsibilities (fiduciary or otherwise) that are not provided for 
under this Agreement.   

 
III. Retirement Board's Areas of Responsibility 
 
 A. The Retirement Board must administer a plan under Section 457 of the Internal 

Revenue Code. 
 
 B. The Retirement Board will direct the participant's employer to make the proper 

payroll deductions. 
 
 C. The Retirement Board will provide employers with Participant Agreements for 

salary reduction authorization. 
 
 D. The Retirement Board will provide participants who separate from employment with 

written documentation to facilitate distribution of their accounts. 
 
 E. The Retirement Board will promulgate rules regarding the administration of the 

Plan and provide a copy of these rules to the Provider. 
 
 F. The Retirement Board will designate a contact person to serve as the recipient of 

all communications from the Provider. 
 

G. The Retirement Board will provide appropriate documentation to Providers 
regarding when a participant has separated from employment for distribution of 
benefits in a timely manner. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Provider Contact Person information is updated to be as follows: 
 
Provider Contact Person – Include name, mailing address, phone number, fax number and 
email address (please print): 
 
          
 
          
 
          
 
          
 
          
 
To Retirement Board: 
 
   North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System 
   400 East Broadway, Suite 505 
   P.O. Box 1657 
   Bismarck, ND 58502-1657 
   (701) 328-3900 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Agreement this   day of  
  , 20______. 
 
 
PROVIDER NAME:     RETIREMENT BOARD: 
 
       NORTH DAKOTA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES 
       RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD 
       
 
 
              
Signature                                                Date  Signature                      
 
                         
Name (please print)     Name (please print)  
 



 

8 

              
Title       Title 
 
 
 
 
 
139687/01640.021 


	Audit Report
	PERSLink Quarterly Report
	Audit Committee Minutes
	Executive Budget Update
	Proposed Board Meeting Dates
	Annual Investment Update
	Compliance Review
	Retirement Plan/Legislation Update 
	Proposed Legislation
	Law Enforcement Plan Transfer Policy
	2009 Group PDP Contract
	Midicare Part D Rates
	Surplus Affordability
	457 & 401(a) 3rd Qtr. Reports
	AUL Contract

